Revised Agenda
Committee of the Whole
June 25, 2020 – Following Council
Electronic Participation
Council Chambers, Grey County Administration Building
1. Call to Order
2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
3. Delegations
10:00 AM

Victoria Watson and Traci Smith, BDO
2019 Grey County Audit
That the Financial Statements for the year ending December 31, 2019
be received; and
That the Treasurer be hereby authorized to approve and sign the
Financial Statements.

4. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion
5. Consent Agenda
That the following Consent Agenda items be received; and
That staff be authorized to take the actions necessary to give effect to the
recommendations in the staff reports; and
That the correspondence be supported or received for information as
recommended in the consent agenda.
a. EDTC-CW-13-20 Grey Roots Flooring
That Report EDTC-CW-13-20 containing the results of RFQ-EDTC-05-20 be
received; and
That Extreme Linings and Coatings be awarded the contract to add an epoxy
coating to the lobby floor at Grey Roots Museum and Archives in the amount
of $27,340, excluding H.S.T; and
That the project is funded by from “Main Building Improvement Reserve”; and
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That staff be authorized to proceed with the Plan prior to Council approval as
per Section 25.6 of Procedural By-law 5003-18.
b. TR-CW-13-20 Award of RFP-TS-01-20 Grey Roads 11 and 15 Rehabilitation
That Report TR-CW-13-20 containing the tender results for RFT-TS-01-20 Grey
Roads 11 and 15 Rehabilitation be received; and
That E.C. King Contracting be awarded the Tender for a total amount of
$1,537,910.25 excluding HST.
c. TR-CW-14-20 Award of RFT-CW-06-20 Grey Road 2 Rehabilitation
That Report TR-CW-14-20 containing the tender results for RFT-TS-06-20 Grey
Road 2 Rehabilitation be received; and
That E.C. King Contracting be awarded the Tender for a total amount of
$1,315,291.37, excluding HST; and
That the Grey Road 2 Rehabilitation project be funded by utilizing available
Federal Gas Tax Reserve funding.
d. Addendum to TR-CW-15-19 Transfer Payment Agreement
That Addendum to Report TR-CW-15-19 regarding the Ontario Government’s
release of the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Rural and Northern
Communities Funding Stream be received; and
That the Warden and Clerk be authorized to enter into the transfer payment
agreement as provided by the Province of Ontario to receive the funding; and
That the agreement be signed prior to Council approval as per Section 25.6 of
Procedural By-law 5008-13.
e. Resolution-Town of Bracebridge-Federal of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) Request
for Municipal Financial Assistance Program
That the resolution from the Town of Bracebridge supporting the Federal of
Canadian Municipalities (FCM) request for the federal and provincial
governments to establish a municipal financial assistance program to offset
the financial impact of COVID-19 be supported.
6. Items For Direction and Discussion
a. FR-CW-16-20 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital
That Report FR-CW-16-20 regarding the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast
be received; and
That the First Year of the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast identified in
Report FR-CW-16-20 be used for planning purposes for the 2021 Budget and
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be included in the County’s 2021 Budget for consideration by County Council;
and
That as per the County’s Purchasing Procedures, staff be authorized to
procure up to 50% of gross expenditures contained in the first year of the Ten
Year Capital Forecast, prior to the annual budget being approved, as per the
County’s Purchasing Policy.
b. FR-CW-17-20 Financial Update and Year End Projection as of April 30, 2020
That Report FR-CW-17-20 regarding a Corporate Financial Update and YearEnd Projection to April 30, 2020 be received; and
That due to the major impact COVID-19 has had on municipal finances by
reducing revenues and increasing costs, that Grey County support efforts by
the Federation of Canadian Municipalities and Association of Municipalities of
Ontario to request further financial supports from the Federal and Provincial
governments to offset COVID-19 financial impacts.
c. EDTC-CW-11-20 Resiliency and Recovery Plan
That Report EDTC-CW-11-20 regarding Economic Recovery Plan be received;
and
That staff be directed to implement the Economic Recovery Plan through the
Grey County Economic Development Working Group; and
That staff be authorized to proceed with the Plan prior to Council approval as
per Section 25.6 of Procedural By-law 5003-18.
d. CAOR-CW-11-20 SWIFT 2.0
That Report CAOR-CW-11-20 SWIFT 2.0 be received; and
That the County of Grey submit letters requesting broadband funding for
Southwestern Ontario to the Canadian Radio and Telecommunications
Commission’s Broadband Fund and Industry Science and Economic
Development’s Universal Broadband Fund.
e. PDR-CW-30-20 Home Farm Subdivision Update
That Report PDR-CW-30-20 be received;
That all written submissions received on plan of subdivision 42T-2015-03
known as Home Farm were considered; the effect of which helped to make an
informed recommendation;
That in consideration of the draft plan of subdivision application 42T-2015-03,
for lands described as Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20,
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Concession 2, and Part of Helen Street ROW, RP 555, in the geographic
Township of Collingwood, now in the Town of The Blue Mountains, the Grey
County Committee of the Whole supports this plan of subdivision to create a
total of two-hundred and fifteen (215) residential units, subject to the
conditions set out in the attached draft plan conditions, or with minor
revisions thereto; and
That staff be directed to work with the Town of The Blue Mountains and the
proponent to explore settlement options for Local Planning Appeal Tribunal
file PL180356.
7. Closed Meeting Matters (May be required)
That Committee of the Whole does now go into closed session pursuant to
Section 239 (2) of the Municipal Act, 2001 as amended, to discuss:
i. Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board
(Home Farm Subdivision)
ii. Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose (Home Farm Subdivision)
8. Other Business
a. AMO Delegation Requests
That the County of Grey submit the following topics as delegation requests
for the AMO Conference:

9.

(to be determined)

Notice of Motion

10. Adjournment
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SUMMARY
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of interest to the Members of Council in fulfilling its responsibilities.
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Members of Council and should not be distributed without our prior consent. Consequently, we
accept no responsibility to a third party that uses this communication.

Status of the Audit

Audit Findings

As of the date of this report, we have substantially completed our audit of
the 2019 financial statements, pending completion of the following items:
u

Approval of financial statements by Council

u

Receipt of outstanding confirmations

u

Receipt of signed management representation letter

u

Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval date

Our audit strategy and procedures focused on the risks specific to your
organization and key accounts as outlined in our Planning Report to the
Members of Council. Significant risk of material misstatement identified
during our planning included the following items:
u
u
u
u

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable, not
absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. See Appendix A for our draft independent auditor’s
report.

Control Environment
Purchases
Payroll
Government Transfers

There were no changes to our planned procedures and no issues were
identified in our testing performed. No additional risks were identified
during the audit.

The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that
described in our Planning Report to the Members of Council dated January
9, 2020.

Audit findings are discussed in more detail on Pages 5 and 6.
Internal Control Matters

Materiality

We are required to report to you in writing, any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we have identified. The specifics of this communication
are included on Page 7.

As communicated to you in our Planning Report to the Members of Council,
preliminary materiality was $2,750,000. Final materiality remained
unchanged from our preliminary assessment.
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Management Representations

Independence

During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to
us. These representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they
were implied through the financial statements. Management provided
representations in response to specific queries from us, as well as unsolicited
representations. Such representations were part of the evidence gathered by us
to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base our audit opinion.
These representations were documented by including in the audit working
papers memoranda of discussions with management and written
representations received from management. A summary of the representation
we have requested from management is set out in the representation letter
included in Appendix B to the report.

Adjusted and Unadjusted Differences
All significant adjusted and unadjusted differences and disclosure omissions
identified through the course of our audit engagement are required to be
disclosed and discussed with Management. We did not identify any non-trivial
unadjusted differences or disclosure omissions identified throughout our audit.
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Our annual letter confirming our independence was previously provided
to you in our planning correspondence. We know of no circumstances
that would cause us to amend the previously provided letter.

Fraud Discussion
Through our planning process, and current and prior years’ audits, we
have developed an understanding of your oversight processes. We are not
currently aware of any fraud affecting the County.
If you are aware of changes to processes or are aware of any instances of
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the County since our
discussions held at planning, we request that you provide us with this
information.
Please refer to the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Detecting Fraud in the
Planning Report to the Members of Council.
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AUDIT FINDINGS
Our audit strategy and procedures focused on the risks specific to your County and key accounts as outlined in our Planning report to the Members of
Council. There were no changes to our planning procedures and no issues were identified in our testing performed. No additional risks were identified
during the audit.
SIGNIFICANT RISKS OF
MATERIAL
MISSTATEMENT

AUDIT FINDINGS

Control Environment Management override of
controls

To address this risk we developed criteria for unusual journal entries, determined the population of unusual journal entries
and obtained corroborating evidence of these journal entries from management as to why the journal entries were made.
No inappropriate journal entries were noted.

Purchases

Bank balances were verified to bank reconciliations and bank confirmations. A review of cheque and EFT logs were reviewed
for continuity of transaction numbers. No exceptions were noted.

Payroll

A test was undertaken to review pay rate changes for all individuals authorized to make pay rate changes. No exceptions
were noted.

Government Transfers

To address this risk we reconciled significant government transfers to their various government funding agreements and
letters, reviewed funding agreements for deferred grants and reviewed minutes to ensure grant revenue listed was
complete. No issues were noted in regards to grant revenue during our testing.

As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our views about significant qualitative aspects of the County’s
accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.
Management is responsible for determining the County’s significant accounting policies. Significant accounting policies have been disclosed in the financial
statements. The choice between accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial position and results of the County. The
application of those policies often involves significant estimates and judgments by management. Based on the audit work that we have performed, it is
our opinion that the estimates are in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting policies and have been consistently applied.
A summary of the significant financial statement disclosures policies and significant estimates and judgements are as follows:
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Audit Findings
A breakdown of the County’s accumulated surplus is included in Note 4. This includes the amount invested in capital assets,
unfunded liabilities, reserves and reserve funds.

Commitments

Significant commitments are disclosed in Note 12.

Contingencies/Litigation
Proceedings

Significant contingences are disclosed in Note 13.

Significant Estimates
and Judgements

Audit Findings

Post-Employment
Benefits

The County provides post-employment health and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees. The benefits earned
by employees are determined using management’s best estimate of expected benefit costs and are expensed as services are
rendered. In order to help estimate the liability for post-employment benefits, the County engaged the services of an actuary.

Taxation revenue
estimate

In accordance with PS 3510, amounts have been estimated for taxable events that have occurred but have not yet been assessed.
The estimate was based on trend analysis and knowledge of the local lower tier municipalities.
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INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to the County’s internal control environment:
u

Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control activities that were relevant to the audit.

u

Discussed and considered potential audit risks with management.

u

Tested the operating effectiveness of controls in the payroll and purchase transaction stream.

The results of these procedures were considered in determining the extent and nature of substantive audit testing required.
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency
is defined as a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of sufficient importance to
merit the attention of those charged with governance.
We did not find any deficiencies in the design and implementation of the internal controls that were tested during the audit.
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the County’s financial statements, our audit cannot be expected to disclose all matters
that may be of interest to you. As part of our work, we considered internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such that
we were able to design appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.
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Tel: 519 376 6110
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www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
1717 2nd Avenue E, Third Floor
PO Box 397
Owen Sound ON N4K 5P7 Canada

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the County of Grey
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the
County of Grey (the County), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2019 and the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus,
changes in net financial assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the County as at December 31, 2019
and the consolidated results of operations, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the County
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Matters
We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness
of the schedules on pages 29 and 30 of the County’s financial statements.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the County’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the County or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the County’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:
·

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

·

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

·

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the County’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the County to cease to continue as
a going concern.

·

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

·

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
County or business activities within the County to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Owen Sound, Ontario
June 25, 2020
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31
Financial assets
Cash and investments (Note 1)
Trade and other receivables
Inventory held for resale

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits and
WSIB Schedule II liabilities (Note 11)
Deferred revenue (Page 28)
Net long-term liabilities (Note 2)

Net financial assets
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses
Tangible capital assets (Note 3)
Inventory of supplies

Accumulated surplus (Note 4)

2019

2018

$ 68,581,792
4,832,862
6,536

$ 64,477,827
3,174,940
10,024

73,421,190

67,662,791

12,850,971

16,289,339

8,533,791
16,050,270
3,860,878

7,619,250
11,316,965
4,493,973

41,295,910

39,719,527

32,125,280

27,943,264

87,478
207,149,677
1,276,720

26,766
201,217,731
1,269,853

208,513,875

202,514,350

$240,639,155

$ 230,457,614

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
For the year ended December 31

Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Government transfers (Note 7)
Assumption of non-profit housing (Note 8)
Other income (Note 9)

2019
Budget
(Note 6)

2019
Actual

2018
Actual

$ 57,357,860
9,729,281
63,108,767
11,054,191

$ 58,254,078
10,269,121
59,185,152
10,602,937

$ 55,557,664
10,189,431
60,519,460
5,009,255
9,181,798

141,250,099

138,311,288

140,457,608

9,204,500
1,957,000
10,678,600
1,691,900
13,478,750
31,258,524
13,258,927
29,707,587
2,102,800
3,709,599

9,941,729
2,050,860
19,943,930
1,676,829
14,667,672
28,786,320
14,859,696
30,582,014
2,419,656
3,201,041

8,651,593
1,932,057
19,148,331
1,676,724
14,119,055
31,797,510
13,944,429
29,219,912
2,276,366
2,612,495

117,048,187

128,129,747

125,378,472

24,201,912

10,181,541

15,079,136

230,457,614

230,457,614

215,378,478

$ 254,659,526

$240,639,155

$ 230,457,614

Expenses
General government
Provincial offences
Transportation services
Health unit
Paramedic services
Social services
Social housing
Long-term care
Grey Roots
Planning and development

Annual surplus (Note 6)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus, end of the year

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31

Annual surplus (Page 6)

$

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets

Change in prepaid expenses
Change in inventory of supplies

2019
Budget
(Note 6)

2019
Actual

2018
Actual

24,201,912

$10,181,541

$ 15,079,136

(29,016,923)
-

(17,481,483)
11,113,708
172,241
263,588

(28,853,630)
10,171,642
825,785
359,523

(29,016,923)

(5,931,946)

(17,496,680)

-

(60,712)
(6,867)

14,173
(199,206)

-

(67,579)

(185,033)

Increase (decrease) in net financial assets

(4,815,011)

Net financial assets, beginning of the year

27,943,264

27,943,264

30,545,841

23,128,253

$32,125,280

$ 27,943,264

Net financial assets, end of the year

$

4,182,016

(2,602,577)

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31

2019

2018

$ 10,181,541

$ 15,079,136

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Annual surplus
Items not involving cash
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits
and WSIB Schedule II liabilities
Amortization
Contributed capital assets
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Deferred revenue recognized
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Trade and other receivables
Inventory held for resale
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Inventory of supplies
Deferred revenue received

914,541
11,113,708
172,241
(6,430,617)

(42,658)
10,171,642
(6,293,816)
825,785
(6,718,700)

15,951,414

13,021,389

(1,657,922)
3,488
(60,712)
(3,438,368)
(6,867)
11,163,922

Capital transactions
Cash used to acquire capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets

Financing activities
Additions to long-term liabilities
Repayment of long-term liabilities

Net change in cash and temporary investments
Cash and temporary investments, beginning of the year
Cash and temporary investments, end of the year

(94,239)
1,449
14,173
5,804,024
(199,206)
8,152,320

21,954,955

26,699,910

(17,481,483)
263,588

(22,559,814)
359,523

(17,217,895)

(22,200,291)

(633,095)

3,365,378
(471,405)

(633,095)

2,893,973

4,103,965

7,393,592

64,477,827

57,084,235

$ 68,581,792

$ 64,477,827

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2019
Management Responsibility

The management of the Corporation of the County of Grey
has prepared and is responsible for the integrity, objectivity
and accuracy of the financial information presented in these
consolidated financial statements. The Committee of the
Whole reviews and approves the consolidated financial
statements before they are submitted to Council.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of
the County of Grey have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards established by
the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants as prescribed by the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing.
Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes
revenues as they become available and measurable; expenses
are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a
result of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a
legal obligation to pay.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. By their nature, these
estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty and actual
results could differ from management's best estimates as
additional information becomes available in the future.
Estimates are used when accounting for items such as
accrued liabilities, useful lives of capital assets, postemployment and WSIB future benefit liabilities and taxation
revenue.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated statements reflect the assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of all municipal organizations,
committees, and boards which are owned or controlled by
Council. All interfund assets and liabilities and revenues and
expenses have been eliminated on consolidation.
The following boards and municipal enterprises owned or
controlled by Council have been consolidated:
Grey County and Owen Sound Housing Corporation
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2019
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and shortterm highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into cash.

Investments

Investments are recorded at cost unless there has been a
decline in the market value which is other than temporary in
nature in which case the investments are written down to
market value.

Inventory

Inventory of goods held for resale is recorded at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the
average cost basis.
Inventory of supplies is recorded at the lower of cost and
replacement cost.

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital and other non-financial assets are accounted
for as assets by the organization because they can be used to
provide services in future periods. These assets do not
normally provide resources to discharge the liabilities of the
organization unless they are sold.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated
amortization. Cost includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or
betterment of the asset. Amortization is provided over the
estimated useful life of the assets, using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the assets is based on estimates
made by management. The following rates are used:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Roads
Traffic signals
Bridges
Culverts
Vehicles

20
15
5
7

to
to
to
to

25
75
50
75
25
15 to 75
40 to 75
3 to 40

years
years
years
years
years
years
years
years

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded
at fair value at the date of receipt and also are recorded as
revenue.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, art and historic treasures, are not
recognized in these financial statements.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2019
Post-Employment Benefits

The County provides post-employment health, dental, life
insurance and other benefits to eligible retired employees.
The benefits earned by employees are determined using
management's best estimate of expected benefit costs and
are expensed as services are rendered.
The County is an employer under Schedule 2 of the Workplace
Safety and Insurance Act (WSIB). As such, it self-insures the
entire risk of its own WSIB claims and is individually liable for
reimbursing WSIB for all costs relating to workers' WSIB
claims. The cost of the claims are determined using
management's best estimates and are expensed as incidents
occur. The County of Grey, in order to reduce this risk as a
Schedule 2 employer, has purchased Occupational Accident
and Excess Indemnity Insurance to assist with work related
death or permanent impairments.
The contributions to Ontario Municipal Employers Retirement
System ("OMERS"), a multi-employer defined benefit plan, are
expensed when contributions are due.

Liability for Contaminated Sites A contaminated site is a site at which substances occur in
concentrations that exceed the maximum acceptable
amounts under an environmental standard. Sites that are
currently in productive use are only considered a
contaminated site if an unexpected event results in
contamination. A liability for remediation of contaminated
sites is recognized when the organization is directly
responsible or accepts responsibility; it is expected that
future economic benefits will be given up; and a reasonable
estimate of the amount can be made. The liability includes
all costs directly attributable to remediation activities
including post remediation operations, maintenance and
monitoring. The liability is recorded net of any expected
recoveries. Management has not identified any contaminated
sites for which a liability needs to be recognized.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

December 31, 2019
Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized as follows:
a)

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they
meet the definition of an asset, have been authorized
and the taxable event occurs. For property taxes, the
taxable event is the period for which the tax is levied.

b)

Fines and donations are recognized when collected.

c)

Other revenues are recorded upon sale of goods or
provision of service when collection is reasonably
assured.

d)

Revenue restricted by legislation, regulation or
agreement and not available for general municipal
purposes, is reported as deferred revenue on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
revenue is reported on the consolidated statement of
operations and accumulated surplus in the year in which
it is used for the specified purpose.

e)

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the
financial statement when the transfer is authorized and
any eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that
transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets
the definition of a liability. Transfers are recognized as
deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to
a liability. Transfer revenue is recognized in the
statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are
settled.

Provincial Subsidies

Subsidies from the Province of Ontario are subject to review
of year-end settlement forms and adjustments by the
Province. Adjustments to funding, if any, are recorded in the
year in which they occur.

Trust Funds

Funds held in trust by the municipality, and their related
operations, are not included in these financial statements.
The financial activity and position of the trust funds are
reported separately on the trust funds statement of
continuity and balance sheet.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
1.

Cash and Investments
Unrestricted
Restricted

2019

2018

$ 68,270,960
310,832

$ 63,940,383
537,444

$ 68,581,792

$ 64,477,827

A cash balance of $23,276,883 is being held in one bank account earning interest at a rate
of prime less 1.75%. Other cash balances totalling $12,256,295 and investment deposits of
$17,516,591 are also held at the same financial institution. The Canadian Deposit Insurance
Corporation insures up to a maximum of $100,000 per depositor per financial institution.
Investment deposits of $12,562,652 are also held at other financial institutions.
Investments included in the balance above consists of:
2019
Bond Fund
Term Deposits 2.14% to 2.27% (2018 - 2.27% to 2.42%)
Guaranteed Investment Certificates
1.90% to 3.07% (2018 - 1.90% to 3.07%)
Membership share

$

3,478,585
17,516,591

2018
$

3,357,151
17,149,315

11,289,217
1

11,224,185
1

$ 32,284,394

$ 31,730,652

Investments have a market value of $32,217,909 (2018 - $31,730,652) at the end of the
year.
The County of Grey has deposits held in an Ontario credit union of $2,289,205 (2018 $2,224,172). The Deposit Insurance Corporation of Ontario (DICO) insures deposits to a
maximum of $250,000 per depositor.
The County of Grey has a demand operating facility agreement with a financial institution
at prime less 0.5%. At December 31, 2019, the County of Grey had a $6,000,000 unused
credit facility.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
2.

Long-Term Liabilities
The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position is made up of the following:
2019
2018
Georgian College Marine Emergency Duties
Training and Research Centre, payable in
equal instalments of $200,000 from 2015
to 2024

$ 1,000,000

Scotiabank, 1.995%, blended monthly
instalments of $36,224, due 2021

2,807,002

3,181,877

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation,
1.01%, mortgage payable in blended
monthly instalments of $4,923, due 2020

53,876

112,096

$

3,860,878

$

$

1,200,000

4,493,973

Principal payments for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

636,267
2,624,611
200,000
200,000
200,000

$

3,860,878

The County also has internally issued debentures for capital assets, $6,733,303 (2018 $7,226,733) to be funded in future years. The debentures were issued January 2019 through
by-law 5041-19. Interest rate of 2.80% per annum, repayable in annual blended payments
of $706,539, maturity January 2031.
Interest of $60,005 (2018 - $16,255) was paid during the year on long-term liabilities.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31
3.

Tangible Capital Assets
2019
Land and Land
Improvements

Cost, beginning of the year

$

Additions

$

307,886

Disposals

Accumulated amortization,
beginning of the year
Amortization
Disposals

13,979,088

Bridges and
Culverts

Roads
$

1,375,473

277,659,947

$

10,212,951

(508,702)

40,501,674

Vehicles
$

1,650,045

(2,477,275)

(122,348)

10,407,679

Total
$

462,714,131

1,396,128

17,481,483

(1,659,413)

(4,800,928)

3,740,775

119,238,664

14,845,859

285,395,623

42,029,371

10,144,394

475,394,686

1,152,110

53,536,567

8,244,836

166,492,800

26,171,609

5,898,478

261,496,400

103,361

2,614,419

936,652

6,215,750

434,278

809,248

11,113,708

(472,029)

(2,291,242)

(122,347)

(17,965)

1,248,330
$

$

(22,050)

(7,141)

Accumulated amortization,
end of the year

116,721,714
2,539,000

(11,140)

Cost, end of the year

Net carrying amount, end of
the year

3,444,029

Machinery &
Equipment

Buildings

2,492,445

56,133,021
$

63,105,643

8,709,459
$

6,136,400

170,417,308
$

114,978,315

(1,454,375)

26,483,540
$

15,545,831

(4,365,099)

5,253,351
$

4,891,043

268,245,009
$

207,149,677
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31
3.

Tangible Capital Assets - (continued)
2018
Land and Land
Improvements

Cost, beginning of the year

$

Additions

$

701,678

Disposals

Accumulated amortization,
beginning of the year
Amortization
Disposals

12,648,638

$

1,769,876

(850,470)

266,100,363

$

13,852,760

(439,426)

40,190,488

Vehicles
$

382,753

(2,293,176)

9,048,539

Total
$

1,583,002

(71,567)

437,739,002
28,853,630

(223,862)

(3,878,501)

116,721,714

13,979,088

277,659,947

40,501,674

10,407,679

462,714,131

1,066,836

51,543,201

7,834,840

162,366,095

25,819,568

5,387,411

254,017,951

85,274

2,229,996

792,870

5,942,659

423,608

697,235

10,171,642

(382,874)

(1,815,954)

(71,567)

(186,168)

(2,693,193)

(236,630)

1,152,110
$

$

Bridges and
Culverts

Roads

3,444,029

-

Accumulated amortization,
end of the year

107,008,623
10,563,561

-

Cost, end of the year

Net carrying amount, end of
the year

2,742,351

Machinery &
Equipment

Buildings

2,291,919

53,536,567
$

63,185,147

8,244,836
$

5,734,252

166,492,800
$

111,167,147

26,171,609
$

14,330,065

5,898,478
$

4,509,201

261,496,400
$

201,217,731
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
3.

Tangible Capital Assets - (continued)
The net book value of tangible capital assets not being amortized because they are under
construction is $559,335 (2018 - $1,867,559).
In 2019, $Nil (2018 - $6,293,816) in contributed capital assets were recognized in the
financial statements during the year.
The municipality holds various works of art and historical treasures. These items are not
recognized as tangible capital assets in the financial statements because a reasonable
estimate of the future benefits associated with such property cannot be made.
The County of Grey has recorded land, machinery and equipment assets at nominal
amounts when historical or replacement cost was not available.
No interest was capitalized to tangible capital assets during the current year or previous
year.

4.

Accumulated Surplus
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:
2019
Invested in tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets purchased
Unfinanced capital assets
Capital assets financed by internal debentures
and to be funded in future years
Capital assets financed by long-term liabilities
and to be funded in future years (Note 2)
Total invested in capital assets

$207,149,677 $ 201,217,731
(1,290,794)
(8,607,784)
(6,733,303)
(2,860,878)
196,264,702

Unfunded post-employment benefits
Unfunded commitment to Georgian College
Other surplus

Reserves (Note 5)
Accumulated surplus

2018

(7,947,382)
(1,000,000)
1,276,720

(3,293,973)
189,315,974
(7,040,495)
(1,200,000)
1,269,853

188,594,040

182,345,332

52,045,115

48,112,282

$240,639,155

$ 230,457,614

On January 10, 2019, the Council passed By-Law 5041-19 to authorize the borrowing upon
reserve funds for capital works for the expansion and renovations of the County's
administration building in the amount of $7,226,733. The debenture bears interest of
2.8% and is repayable in blended annual instalments of $706,539 maturing January 10,
2031.
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
5.

Reserves Set Aside for Specific Purpose by Council
2019
Working funds
Insurance, sick leave and WSIB
Current purposes
Capital purposes

$

1,930,799
3,303,683
10,564,343
36,246,290

$ 52,045,115

6.

2018
$

1,930,799
3,136,183
11,059,712
31,985,588

$ 48,112,282

Budgets
Under Canadian Public sector accounting principles, budget amounts are to be reported on
the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus and changes in net
financial assets for comparative purposes. The 2019 budget amounts for the Corporation of
the County of Grey approved by Council have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation of the consolidated statements of operations and accumulated surplus and
changes in net financial assets. The following is a reconciliation of the budget approved by
Council.
2019
Budget
Annual surplus (Page 6)

$

Transfers to reserves
Transfers from reserves
Capital acquisitions, disposals
and write-down
Amortization
Proceeds from long-term debt
Proceeds from internal debentures
Debt principal repayments
Change in unfunded liabilities
Change in long-term commitments
Change in other surplus

Change in unfinanced capital
$

31

2019
Actual

2018
Actual

24,201,912 $ 10,181,541

$ 15,079,136

(8,676,217) (12,828,330)
13,924,322
8,895,497

(8,683,362)
7,124,124

(29,016,923) (17,045,654)
11,113,708
6,733,303
(433,094)
(433,095)
906,887
(200,000)
(6,867)

(27,668,322)
10,171,642
3,365,378
(71,405)
(30,626)
(400,000)
(199,206)

-

7,316,990

(1,312,641)

-

(7,316,990)

1,312,641

- $

-

$

-
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
7.

Government Transfers
2019
Budget

Operating
Province of Ontario
Paramedic services
Social services
Social housing
Long-term care
Other

$

Government of Canada
Social housing
Federal Gas Tax - other
Other

Other municipalities
Transportation services
Other

Total operating transfers
Capital
Province of Ontario
Transportation services
Social and Family Services
Social Housing

Government of Canada
Federal Gas Tax - Transportation
Other

Other municipalities
Transportation services
Total capital transfers
Total government transfers

2019
Actual

7,597,827 $ 7,468,799
27,178,936
23,973,118
2,931,303
3,363,341
17,173,052
16,897,452
814,987
1,107,615

2018
Actual
$

7,500,492
26,920,854
2,566,833
16,623,832
312,009

55,696,105

52,810,325

53,924,020

635,369
110,000
20,160

635,370
52,942
40,495

635,370
57,305
-

765,529

728,807

692,675

391,000
18,700

384,977
35,907

394,021
42,237

409,700

420,884

436,258

56,871,334

53,960,016

55,052,953

1,249,562
941,423

1,273,580
886,691

1,056,711
246,512
228,772

2,190,985

2,160,271

1,531,995

4,046,448
-

3,064,865
-

3,456,080
42,906

4,046,448

3,064,865

3,498,986

-

-

435,526

6,237,433

5,225,136

5,466,507

$ 63,108,767 $ 59,185,152

$ 60,519,460
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December 31, 2019
8.

Assumption of non-profit housing

During 2018, the County of Grey (the County) entered into an agreement with Golden Town to
acquire all assets including properties known as Golden Town Manor, Albert Place, and Victoria
Village located in the Municipality of Meaford, cash, accounts receivable, investments,
furniture, equipment, fixtures, and prepaid expenses in exchange for the assumption of Golden
Town's mortgages and accounts payable.
Golden Town discontinued operations on September 28, 2018 and the County assumed the
operating activities on September 29, 2018. On October 4, 2018 the properties vested and the
mortgages were assumed by the County.
Costs incurred relating to restructuring consist of legal fees.
Details of assets and liabilities assumed as follows:

2018

Cash
Long-term debt
Tangible capital assets

9.

$

2,070,970
(3,355,530)
6,293,815

$

5,009,255

Other Income

Provincial Offences (POA)
Investment income, penalties and interest
Licenses, permits and rents
Donations
Development charges
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Other

$

2019
Budget

2019
Actual

2,350,000 $
1,040,200
4,726,819
69,097
2,549,307
244,268
74,500

2,446,412 $
1,126,062
4,461,818
461,287
2,169,271
(172,241)
110,328

$ 11,054,191 $ 10,602,937 $

33

2018
Actual
2,281,651
876,585
4,014,981
87,057
2,606,404
(825,785)
140,905
9,181,798
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10. Pension Agreements
The municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 696 members of its staff. This plan is
a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received
by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. Employees and
employers contribute jointly to the plan. The amount contributed to OMERS for the
County's share for 2019 was $3,693,693 (2018 - $3,528,564). The contribution rate for 2019
was 9.0% to 15.8% depending on age and income level (2018 - 9.0% to 15.8%).
OMERS is a multi-employer plan, therefore, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint
responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the
municipality does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. The last
available report for the OMERS plan was on December 31, 2019. At that time the plan
reported a $ 3.4 billion actuarial deficit (2018 - $4.19 billion actuarial deficit), based on
actuarial liabilities of $ 106.44 billion (2018 - $99.06 billion) and actuarial assets of $ 103.04
billion (2018 - $94.87 billion). Ongoing adequacy of the current contribution rates will need
to be monitored as fluctuations in financial markets may lead to increased future funding
requirements.

11. Post-Employment Benefits

2019

WSIB
Vacation pay liability
Post-employment benefits
Other

a)

2018

$ 2,502,424
1,549,791
4,427,139
54,437

$

2,383,913
1,729,492
3,459,062
46,783

$ 8,533,791

$

7,619,250

The County is a Schedule II employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. As
a Schedule II employer the County assumes liability for any award made under the Act.
An actuarial valuation performed at December 31, 2019 has calculated the liability to
be $2,502,424. The actuarial valuation was based on a number of assumptions such as,
discount rates and WSIB payment rates. The assumptions used reflect management's
best estimates. The WSIB benefit liability was determined using a discount rate of
2.60% and a WSIB administration rate of 23.5%. The current year recovery is $118,511
and prior year recovery was $62,654. At December 31, 2019, the County provided
$3,129,099 in a reserve to offset this liability.

b)

The vacation year for an employee begins either on their "start date" anniversary or
the date defined by the applicable union contract. The vacation liability includes all
carry-forward amounts from the previous vacation year and vacation earned from the
vacation year start date to December 31, 2019.
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11. Post-Employment Benefits
c)

The County pays certain life insurance, health and dental benefits on behalf of its
retired employees. The County recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in
which the employees render the services.
Actuarial valuations for accounting purposes are performed using the projected benefit
method. The most recent actuarial report was prepared as at December 31, 2019.
The assumptions used reflect management's best estimates. The post-employment
benefit liability was determined using a discount rate of 2.6%. For dental, travel and
vision premiums, a 4% annual rate of increase was assumed for 2019 and forward. For
health care premiums, a 5.5% increase was used for 2019 and a decreasing rate used
until 2026 where 4% was used thereafter.
2019

2018

Post-employment benefit accrued liability
Unamortized loss

$

3,281,762
1,145,377

$

3,222,662
236,400

Post-employment benefits

$

4,427,139

$

3,459,062

2019

2018

Retirement benefit expense
Interest costs

$

208,252
90,919

$

204,876
86,472

Total expense for the year

$

299,171

$

291,348
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12. Contractual Commitments
(a)

As part of the Provincial Local Services Realignment Program, the Ontario Housing
Corporation (OHC) remains responsible for the servicing of the debentures used to
finance the public housing projects transferred to the Grey County and Owen Sound
Housing Corporation under the authority of the Social Housing Reform Act, 2000.
Information received from OHC as at December 31, 2019 indicates the following:
Principal payments on debentures during the year
Interest payments on debentures during the year

$

494,639
159,260

Total

$

653,899

Debentures outstanding at year-end

$

2,124,637

The principal and interest payments are recovered at source from Federal Social
Housing funding provided from the Province and the balance is flowed to or
recovered from the Consolidated Municipal Services Manager (County of Grey). The
net amount recovered from the County of Grey in 2019 was $254,009 (2018 $240,529) and is recorded on the statement of operations as a transfer to the
Province.
(b)

The County of Grey has approved a capital grant of land and money in the amount of
$1,000,000 to the Centre Grey Health Services Foundation for the Centre Grey
General Hospital Building Fund. The amount of money to be paid will be determined
by deducting the value of the lands and will be paid in ten equal instalments
contingent upon the approval of funding for completion of the Centre Grey Hospital
by the Province of Ontario. Payments will be processed once construction begins. The
County has transferred $785,159 to reserves towards this commitment.

(c)

The County of Grey has been allocated funding for Affordable Housing projects under
the Canada-Ontario Affordable Housing Program and Delivering Opportunities for
Ontario Renters Program. These funds are being used to create new housing units
within the County. A total of $8,616,349 has been committed to developers in order
to complete these units with $5,272,263 released as of December 31, 2019. If the
units remain as affordable housing units for a period of 25 years, no amount will be
repayable.

(d)

Subsequent to year end the County of Grey executed a contribution agreement for
$6,181,061 through the Ontario Housing Priorities Initiative and the Canada Ontario
Community Housing Initiative to develop new housing units with a developer for an
Affordable Housing Project. If the units remain as affordable housing units for a
period of 20 years, no amount will be repayable.

(e)

The County of Grey has approved a capital purchase of two tandem trucks in the
amount of $880,835. The trucks arrived subsequent to year end.
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13. Contingencies
(a)

The County of Grey along with the County of Bruce, the Province of Ontario, the
Dominion of Canada and several lower tier municipalities have been named as
defendants in a land claim action filed by the Chippewas of Saugeen and Nawash, for
damages alleged to total $92,000,000,000. No breakdown as to each municipality's
relative share of the $92,000,000,000 has been provided. The likelihood of the
success of this action is undeterminable at the present time.

(b)

The County has been served with various claims as a result of motor vehicle
accidents and other incidents. The outcomes of these claims are not determinable at
this time.

(c)

The County insured errors and omissions and public liability insurance coverage
through the Ontario Municipal Insurance Exchange (OMEX) up until December 31,
2008. OMEX is a separate pooling of the public liability insurance risks of its municipal
members. All members are subject to assessment for losses, if any, experienced for
the years in which they were members.

14. Trust Funds
The trust funds administered by the municipality amounting to $45,141 (2018 - $49,313)
have not been included in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have the
operations been included in the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated
surplus.

15. Provincial Offences
Revenue is recognized on a cash basis for fines levied during the year. The gross revenues
collected for the County of Grey for the year ended December 31, 2019 were $2,173,498
(2018 - $2,025,285). Net revenues after deduction of operating expenses were $450,906
(2018 - $450,618).

16. Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year end, the impact of COVID-19 in Canada and on the global economy
increased significantly. As the impacts of COVID-19 continue, there could be further impact
on the County, its citizens, employees, suppliers and other third party business associates
that could impact the timing and amounts realized on the County’s assets and future ability
to deliver services and projects. At this time, the full potential impact of COVID-19 on the
County is not known. Although the disruption from the virus is expected to be temporary,
given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the duration of disruption and the
related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. The County’s ability
to deliver non-essential services will depend on the legislative mandates from the various
levels of government. The County will continue to focus on collecting receivables,
managing expenditures, and leveraging reserves to ensure it is able to continue providing
essential services to its citizens.
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17. Segmented Information
The County of Grey is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide
range of services to its citizens. Distinguishable functional segments have been separately
disclosed in the segmented information. The nature of the segments and the activities they
encompass are as follows:
Corporate Services
Corporate Services encompasses the budgets of Council, Corporate Administration,
Emergency Management, Assessment, Provincial Offences, County Property, the Grey Bruce
Health Unit and Education & Healthcare Initiatives. In addition, this also includes the
taxation budget, which includes supplementary tax and tax write-offs, as well as the
Federal Gas Tax Funding.
Planning and Community Development
Planning and Community Development encompasses Planning (including civic addressing),
Heritage, Agriculture, Forestry, Trails, Tourism and Economic Development mandates.
Social Services
Social Services encompasses the Social Services, Housing and Long-Term Care departments.
Social Services includes Social Assistance, Administration, Ontario Works and Child Care.
Housing covers operational and capital budgets for Grey County Housing, subsidies provided
to Non-Profit Housing Providers and the Affordable Housing Programs. The Long-Term Care
component refers to the three Long-Term Care facilities (Grey Gables - Markdale, Rockwood
Terrace - Durham and Lee Manor - Owen Sound) that are owned and operated by the County
of Grey.
Transportation and Public Safety
Transportation and Public Safety encompasses the Paramedic Services and Transportation
Services departments (with Transportation Services responsible for providing a safe
transportation network).
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.
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Planning and
Community
Development

Corporate
Services
Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Specific grants
Other revenue

$

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Interest on debt
Materials and supplies
Contracted services
Other transfers
Rents and financial expenses
Amortization

Annual surplus

$

10,986,899
206,151
813,800
3,630,489

$

4,688,501
298,610
406,529
106,707

Social Services, Housing
and Long-Term Care

$

17,009,653
9,346,570
45,755,972
4,902,897

Transportation and
Public Safety

$

25,569,025
417,790
12,208,851
1,962,844

2019
Total

$

58,254,078
10,269,121
59,185,152
10,602,937

15,637,339

5,500,347

77,015,092

40,158,510

138,311,288

5,742,014
1,304,349
1,091,899
4,364,243
319,802
847,111

3,020,183
954,077
714,886
655,040
37,275
239,236

30,734,259
60,005
5,809,448
7,669,629
27,187,006
684,668
2,083,015

17,791,099
4,478,662
3,536,987
10,146
850,362
7,944,346

57,287,555
60,005
12,546,536
13,013,401
32,216,435
1,892,107
11,113,708

13,669,418

5,620,697

74,228,030

34,611,602

128,129,747

(120,350) $

2,787,062

1,967,921

$

$

5,546,908

$

10,181,541
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The Corporation of the County of Grey
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31
Planning and
Community
Development

Corporate
Services
Revenue
Taxation
Fees and user charges
Specific grants
Assumption of non-profit housing
Other revenue

$

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Interest on debt
Materials and supplies
Contracted services
Other transfers
Rents and financial expenses
Amortization

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

9,698,079
175,400
19,641
2,600,273

$

4,452,904
494,331
427,751
100,193

Social Services,
Housing and LongTerm Care

$

17,188,479
9,113,718
47,229,238
5,009,255
4,109,392

Transportation and
Public Safety

$

24,218,202
405,982
12,842,830
2,371,940

2018
Total

$

55,557,664
10,189,431
60,519,460
5,009,255
9,181,798

12,493,393

5,475,179

82,650,082

39,838,954

140,457,608

4,696,017
1,308,000
3,049,947
2,393,605
419,068
393,737

2,785,949
979,941
484,847
369,319
36,927
231,879

30,117,544
47,028
5,574,636
6,886,778
29,650,027
665,592
2,020,247

16,878,073
4,342,439
3,678,439
10,864
831,790
7,525,779

54,477,583
47,028
12,205,016
14,100,011
32,423,815
1,953,377
10,171,642

12,260,374

4,888,862

74,961,852

33,267,384

125,378,472

233,019

$

586,317

$

7,688,230

$

6,571,570

$

15,079,136
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The Corporation of the County of Grey

Schedule of Deferred Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2019
Opening

Contributions
Received

Investment
Income

Revenue
Recognized

Obligatory Reserve Funds
Development charges
$ 7,804,714
Federal gas tax
2,585,510

$ 4,177,797
5,849,740

$

195,643
95,309

$(2,169,271) $10,008,883
(3,117,807)
5,412,752

10,390,224

10,027,537

290,952

(5,287,078) 15,421,635

-

156,101
391,996

-

(269,979)

156,101
122,017

113,753

38,225

-

(137,950)

14,028

180,625
352,000
213,027

58,423

-

(180,625)
(352,000)
-

271,450

49,848

186,797

-

(185,497)

51,148

16,322
1,166

13,891

-

(16,322)
(1,166)

13,891

926,741

845,433

-

(1,143,539)

628,635

$11,316,965

$10,872,970

Other
Cannabis Legalization
Paramedicine program
Housing Allowance
and Build program
Housing Apartment
Approvement Program
Social Infrastructure Fund
Aggregate Fund
Affordable housing
Affordable housing
Business Enterprise
Centre
Miscellaneous
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$

290,952

Ending

$(6,430,617) $16,050,270
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Grey Roots - Museum
Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)

For the year ended December 31

2019

Revenue
Province of Ontario
Canada
County of Grey
Donations
Donation in kind
Admissions and sales
Transfer from County of Grey reserves
Sale of assets

$

63,534
50,636
1,596,723
16,734
8,155
152,176
5,704
289

Expenditures
Advertising
Donation in kind
Supplies, postage and telephone
Payments to other organizations
Professional
Purchases for resale
Occupancy
Special events
Salaries and benefits
Travel and convention fees
Vehicle operations and licensing
Transfer to (from) County of Grey reserve

2018
$

1,893,951

1,857,682

73,353
8,155
68,341
486
8,963
6,735
303,708
123,937
1,240,144
11,533
3,888
(20,493)

78,111
8,389
59,982
486
8,689
5,510
286,803
140,581
1,153,117
15,133
2,813
96,589

1,828,750

1,856,203

Change in unfinanced liabilities

(14,227)

(9,869)

1,842,977
Net revenue (loss) for the year

$

42

63,534
50,506
1,542,702
18,476
8,389
156,457
14,000
3,618

50,974

1,866,072
$

(8,390)
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County of Grey - Provincial Offences

Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)

For the year ended December 31
Revenue
Fines
Province of Ontario
Investment income
Transcripts
Cost recoveries

2019

2018

$ 2,173,498
269,456
1,859
1,610
408

$ 2,025,285
241,046
1,394
5,754
94

2,446,831

2,273,573

614,255
400,812
372,639
64,180
209,023
335,016

489,270
286,936
353,359
25,608
349,517
318,265

1,995,925

1,822,955

450,906

450,618

53,864

63,690

Expenditures
Salaries and benefits
Administrative charges
Victim fine surcharge
Dedicated fines
Prosecution expenses
Transfers to County of Bruce

Net revenue before transfer to reserves
Transfer to reserve
Net revenue for the year

$

43

397,042

$

386,928
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Audit Final Report for County of Grey

For the year ended December 31, 2019

APPENDIX B: REPRESENTATION LETTER
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County of Grey
595 9th Ave East
Owen Sound, ON
N4K 3E3
June 25, 2020
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
1717 2nd Avenue East, PO Box 397
Owen Sound, ON
N4K 5P7
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of County
of Grey for the year ended December 31, 2019, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether
the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements
We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated December
9, 2019, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards; in particular, the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
therewith.
·

However, the
followingused
departures
from Canadian
public
sector including
accounting
standards
have
Significant
assumptions
by us in making
accounting
estimates,
those
measured
at
fair value, are reasonable.

·

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed
in accordance with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards.

·

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Canadian public
sector accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

·

The financial statements of the entity use appropriate accounting policies that have been
properly disclosed and consistently applied.

·

The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate,
to the financial statements as a whole. A list of the uncorrected misstatements is attached to
the representation letter.

·

We have reviewed and approved all journal entries recommended by the practitioners during the
audit. A list of the journal entries is attached to the representation letter.

Information Provided
·

We have provided you with:
·

access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

·

additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

·

unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.
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·

We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls to
prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all deficiencies in
internal control of which we are aware.

·

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

·

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial
statements.

·

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

Fraud and Error
·

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

·

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:

·

·

management;

·

employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

·

others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators, or others.

General Representations
·

Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made in the
financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you.

·

We have provided you with significant assumptions that in our opinion are reasonable and
appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of
the entity when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures in the financial
statements.

·

We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held at year
end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.

·

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, there have been no changes to title, control over
assets, liens or assets pledged as security for liabilities or collateral.

·

The entity has complied with all provisions in its agreements related to debt and there were no
defaults in principal or interest, or in the covenants and conditions contained in such agreements.

·

There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the recognition, measurement,
presentation or disclosure of assets and liabilities (actual and contingent).

·

The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the
financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate
will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the financial
statements.
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·

There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with guarantees or
indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any substantial commitments,
whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of business, which would materially
affect the financial statements or financial position of the entity, except as disclosed in the
financial statements.

Other Representations Where the Situation Exists
·

We have informed you of all known actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel. Since there are no actual, outstanding or possible
litigation and claims, no disclosure is required in the financial statements.

·

During the Yardi upgrade management appropriately tested any conversion of data that would
impact the financial statements. The Yardi upgrade during the year did not result in any
discrepancies regarding Housing arrears or revenue for the fiscal year.

·

To the extent that our normal procedures and controls related to our financial statement close
process at any of our locations were adversely impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak, we took
appropriate actions and safeguards to reasonably ensure the fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

·

There are no claims or possible claims that would exceed or not be covered by the insurance
coverage currently carried by the County

·

Evaluated all land owned by the Municipality or where the Municipality has accepted
responsibility for the land as to whether there are sites in the Scope of PS 3260 Liability for
Contaminated Sites

·

Made available to you all financial records and related data relevant to the assessment of the
liability for contaminated sites.

·

There are no contaminated sites within the Scope of PS 3260.

Yours truly,
_____________________________________
Signature

_______________________________________
Position

_______________________________________
Signature

_______________________________________
Position
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the County of Grey which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 and the consolidated statements of
operations and accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and have issued our
report thereon dated June 25, 2020.
The audit was performed to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The
information in this year-end report is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. The information was derived from the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information in
this year-end report has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves.
The year-end report is prepared to provide Council with more detailed financial information and graphical
analysis of the consolidated financial statements. As a result, the year-end report may not be suitable for
other purposes. Our year-end report is intended solely for the use of Council and should not be distributed
to or used by parties other than Council in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements.
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WHERE ARE YOU TODAY?
2015
Cash and temporary investments

2016

2017

2018

2019

58,928,067

59,619,551

57,084,235

64,477,827

68,581,792

3,659,837

2,450,026

3,080,701

3,174,940

4,832,862

11,539

11,138

11,473

10,024

6,536

62,599,443

62,080,715

60,176,409

67,662,791

73,421,190

10,768,924

8,945,687

10,485,315

16,289,339

12,850,971

Schedule II liabilities

6,201,179

8,265,984

7,661,908

7,619,250

8,533,791

Deferred Revenue

6,114,239

7,379,465

9,883,345

11,316,965

16,050,270

Net long-term liablities

2,993,195

2,000,000

1,600,000

4,493,973

3,860,878

26,077,537

26,591,136

29,630,568

39,719,527

41,295,910

36,521,906

35,489,579

30,545,841

27,943,264

32,125,280

172,294,241

174,169,747

183,721,051

201,217,731

207,149,677

Trade and other receivables
Other

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liablities
Vacation pay, post-employment benefits and WSIB

Net financial assets

Accumulated surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets
Net book value of tangible capital assets
Unexpended financing (Unfinanced capital)

(853,565)

(779,503)

(7,295,143)

(8,607,784)

Capital assets financed by internal debentures

(1,290,794)
(6,733,303)

and to be funded in future years
Capital assets financed by long-term liabilities
and to be funded in future years
Total invested in capital assets
Unfunded post-employment benefits
Unfunded commitment to Grey Bruce Health Services
Unfunded commitment to Georgian College
Other surplus
Reserves

(593,195)
170,847,481
(5,615,745)

173,390,244
(7,664,899)

(3,293,973)
176,425,908
(7,071,121)

(600,000)

(400,000)

(200,000)

(1,800,000)

(1,600,000)

(1,400,000)

189,315,974
(7,040,495)
(1,200,000)

(2,860,878)
196,264,702
(7,947,382)
(1,000,000)

1,405,741

1,209,825

1,070,647

1,269,853

1,276,720

164,237,477

164,935,170

168,825,434

182,345,332

188,594,040

46,019,475

46,131,947

46,553,044

48,112,282

52,045,115

210,256,952

211,067,117

215,378,478

230,457,614

240,639,155
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CASH FLOWS
2015
Cash and temporary investments

2016

58,928,067

2017

59,619,551

2018

57,084,235

64,477,827

20,434,569

26,699,910

2019
68,581,792

Cash Flows
Operating
Capital transactions

19,333,154

17,686,420

(17,480,641)

(16,001,741)

(588,082)

(993,195)

Financing
Increase (decrease) in cash

1,264,431

(22,569,885) (22,200,291)

691,484

(400,000)

2,893,973

(2,535,316)

7,393,592

21,954,955
(17,217,895)
(633,095)
4,103,965
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Cash Flow by Activity
40,000,000
30,000,000
20,000,000
10,000,000
0
2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

(10,000,000)
(20,000,000)
(30,000,000)
Operating

Capital transactions

Financing
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TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Land and Land
Improvements
Buildings

1,340,994

1,746,686

1,675,515

2,291,919

2,492,445

44,979,392

47,193,752

55,465,422

63,185,147

63,105,643

Machinery &
Equipment

4,416,708

4,802,898

4,813,798

5,734,252

6,136,400

105,005,018

103,783,882

103,734,268

111,167,147

114,978,315

12,650,839

13,247,688

14,370,920

14,330,065

15,545,831

3,901,290

3,394,841

3,661,128

4,509,201

4,891,043

Net Book Value

172,294,241

174,169,747

183,721,051

201,217,731

207,149,677

Historical Cost

408,260,450

420,469,488

437,739,002

462,714,131

475,394,686

Roads
Bridges and Culverts
Vehicles

Definitions:
Historical Cost –

the price of an asset on the balance sheet based on its original cost when acquired

Net Book Value -

the amount recorded for an asset based on its historical cost less accumulated amortization

Amortization -

the allocation of the cost of an asset over its useful life
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FOUR YEAR AND BUDGET COMPARISON OF REVENUES

Taxation

2016

2017

2018

2019

Budget

$ 52,760,353

$ 54,844,864

$ 55,557,664

$ 58,254,078

$ 57,357,860

Fees and user charges

10,476,788

9,866,339

10,189,431

10,269,121

9,729,281

Government transfers

50,494,104

53,982,270

60,519,460

59,185,152

63,108,767

Provincial Offences

2,374,188

2,186,128

2,281,651

2,446,412

2,350,000

Licenses, permits and rents

3,781,531

3,834,869

4,014,981

4,461,818

4,726,819

Assumption of non-profit housing
Other income (expense)

-

-

5,009,255

-

-

2,316,732

2,918,394

2,885,166

3,694,707

3,977,372

$ 122,203,696

$ 127,632,864

$ 140,457,608

$ 138,311,288

$ 141,250,099

2019 REVENUES
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FOUR YEAR COMPARISON OF OPERATING EXPENSES AND
BUDGET
(excluding amortization)
2016

Council

2017

2018

2019

Budget

587,239

624,764

625,123

745,292

753,200

General government

6,888,098

6,887,355

6,850,596

7,758,691

7,858,700

Corporate overhead

424,199

477,900

786,604

594,332

592,600

Emergency management

155,289

178,165

214,417

293,751

256,600

1,826,187

1,694,682

1,713,174

1,753,410

1,700,400

10,240,965

10,649,102

10,483,269

10,654,685

8,950,700

Transportation services - Winter control

1,817,625

1,974,294

1,710,501

1,977,265

1,727,900

Health Unit

1,695,252

1,853,813

1,676,724

1,676,829

1,691,900

Paramedic services

13,092,287

12,934,178

13,547,835

14,035,306

13,478,750

Social services - General assistance

Provincial Offences
Transportation services - Roadways

18,371,982

18,387,214

18,779,338

18,250,688

19,437,378

Social services - Child care

8,228,296

8,797,906

11,028,694

10,211,047

11,509,836

Social services - Other assistance

1,764,119

1,754,133

1,970,703

305,348

311,310

Long-term care

27,272,403

26,965,780

28,202,835

29,530,169

29,707,587

Social housing

10,949,522

12,280,702

12,960,035

13,847,764

13,258,927

1,941,510

1,973,572

2,049,412

2,185,969

2,102,800

Planning and Development

812,969

753,962

715,123

822,930

843,527

Tourism and Economic Development

953,247

1,527,758

1,508,735

2,063,677

2,412,772

Agriculture and forestry

448,103

436,755

383,713

308,885

453,300

-

-

-

-

-

107,469,292

110,152,035

115,206,830

117,016,038

117,048,187

Salaries

53,163,520

52,451,865

54,477,583

57,287,554

56,243,383

Interest

56,580

32,621

47,028

60,005

60,675

Materials & supplies

11,931,882

12,143,564

12,205,016

12,546,536

13,696,433

Contracted services

11,853,571

12,395,012

14,100,011

13,013,401

12,212,782

Other transfers

28,474,514

30,745,363

32,423,815

32,216,435

32,885,042

Grey Roots

Long-term commitments
Total

Rents & financial expense

1,989,225

2,383,610

1,953,377

1,892,107

1,949,872

107,469,292

110,152,035

115,206,830

117,016,038

117,048,187
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2019 OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

2019 OPERATING EXPENSES BY OBJECT
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DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY OF SURPLUS TRANSFERRED TO
RESERVES

Budget
Revenue

Actual
Revenue

Budget
Expenditure

Actual
Expenditure

Surplus / (Deficit) Internal
Before Allocations Allocations
and Transfers

Transfer
to (from)
Reserve

Surplus
(Deficit)

CORPORATE SERVICES
Taxation & Grants

$

58,084,060 $

59,995,712 $

726,200 $

1,741,634 $

896,218 $

-

Council

$

17,000 $

720 $

769,400 $

761,435 $

(8,315) $

8,315 $

Admin. Departments

$

1,769,200 $

1,763,654 $

6,465,250 $

5,995,301 $

464,403 $

(220,775) $

Information Services

$

307,100 $

228,754 $

307,100 $

226,075 $

2,679 $

(2,679) $

-

$

-

Weekly Indemnity

$

-

$

534 $

(534) $

534 $

-

$

-

Workers Compensation

$

(200) $

(318) $

(200) $

260,445 $

(260,763) $

260,763 $

-

$

-

Property

$

229,500 $

84,684 $

1,316,431 $

1,126,156 $

45,459 $

(45,459) $

-

$

-

Provincial Offences

$

2,590,800 $

2,653,421 $

2,171,900 $

2,180,657 $

53,864 $

(53,864) $

-

$

-

Assessment

$

$

1,849,200 $

1,849,131 $

69 $

(69) $

-

$

-

Health Care and Education

$

44,200 $

217,955 $

2,169,200 $

2,154,129 $

188,826 $

(188,826) $

-

$

$

63,041,660 $

64,944,582 $

15,774,481 $

16,295,497 $

1,381,906 $

(242,060) $

-

$

$

-

-

$

-

$

896,218 $
-

-

$

-

243,628 $

-

1,139,846 $

-

PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Planning & Development

$

257,967 $

193,054 $

994,777 $

920,976 $

8,888 $

$

8,888 $

-

Econ. Dev., Tourism, Forestry & Agriculture

$

2,419,945 $

1,066,165 $

4,197,531 $

2,921,354 $

(77,603) $

(5,160) $

-

(82,763) $

-

Grey Roots

$

1,524,869 $

1,231,576 $

3,698,974 $

3,442,423 $

(36,742) $

-

(36,742) $

-

$

4,202,781 $

2,490,795 $

8,891,282 $

7,284,753 $

(105,457) $

(5,160) $

Ontario Works and Child Care

$

28,214,131 $

24,757,106 $

31,871,974 $

28,107,659 $

307,290 $

(301,390) $

Housing

$

10,299,300 $

10,234,767 $

17,381,464 $

17,319,903 $

(2,972) $

Grey Gables

$

5,699,047 $

5,528,790 $

7,150,014 $

7,086,402 $

(106,645) $

106,645 $

-

$

-

Lee Manor

$

12,522,535 $

12,220,576 $

14,305,691 $

14,140,079 $

(136,347) $

140,987 $

4,640 $

-

Rockwood Terrace

$

8,826,016 $

8,268,704 $

10,500,529 $

9,695,584 $

247,633 $

(247,633) $

-

$

-

Long Term Care Redevelopment

$

$

1,361,010 $

1,402,686 $

(41,676) $

$

(41,676) $

-

61,009,943 $

82,570,682 $

77,752,313 $

267,283 $

(301,391) $

(34,108) $

-

548,611 $

$

(110,617)

SOCIAL SERVICES

$

-

$

65,561,029 $

-

-

-

$

5,900 $

-

(2,972) $

-

TRANSPORTATION & PUBLIC SAFETY
Paramedic Services

$

8,398,027 $

8,283,312 $

15,048,946 $

15,566,247 $

(632,016) $

Transportation Services

$

13,802,485 $

11,161,140 $

32,720,591 $

29,355,285 $

723,961 $

$

22,200,512 $

19,444,452 $

47,769,537 $

44,921,532 $

91,945 $

$ 155,005,982 $

147,889,772 $

155,005,982 $

146,254,095 $

1,635,677 $

(83,405) $

-

$

723,961 $

-

548,611 $

640,556 $

-

1,635,677 $

-

-

-

$

The departmental summary has been prepared by management. It does not include the expenditures for
WSIB Schedule 2 costs, vacation pay and post employment benefits and amortization.
Revenues and expenditures include transfers to and from reserves and debt principal repayments and therefore
columns do not agree to the consolidated statement of operations.

Internal allocations refers to the approved transfers required to fund departmental deficits.
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WHAT YOU HAVE FOR THE FUTURE - RESERVES
Reserves

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Working funds

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

1,930,799

Insurance

3,461,496

3,374,622

3,084,428

3,136,183

3,303,683

Current purposes

8,526,130

9,060,933

9,519,037

11,059,712

10,564,343

Capital purposes

32,101,050

31,765,593

32,018,780

31,985,588

36,246,290

46,019,475

46,131,947

46,553,044

48,112,282

52,045,115

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Reserves as a % of Total Expenses

42.53%

42.93%

42.26%

41.76%

44.48%

Reserves as a % of Taxation

89.57%

89.79%

84.88%

86.60%

89.34%
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WHAT YOU HAVE FOR THE FUTURE – OBLIGATORY RESERVE
FUNDS

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Development Charges

3,585,057

4,462,419

6,408,480

7,804,714

10,008,883

Federal Gas Tax

2,348,672

2,561,990

3,034,313

2,585,510

5,412,752

5,933,729

7,024,409

9,442,793

10,390,224

15,421,635

Obligatory Reserve Funds
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

EDTC-CW-13-20

Title:

Grey Roots Flooring

Prepared by:

Savanna Myers, Director of Economic Development,
Tourism & Culture

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected: All
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report EDTC-CW-13-20 containing the results of RFQ-EDTC-05-20
be received; and

2.

That Extreme Linings and Coatings be awarded the contract to add an
epoxy coating to the lobby floor at Grey Roots Museum and Archives in
the amount of $27,340, excluding H.S.T; and

3.

That the project is funded by from “Main Building Improvement
Reserve”; and

4.

That staff be authorized to proceed with the Plan prior to Council
approval as per Section 25.6 of Procedural By-law 5003-18.

Executive Summary
The lobby at Grey Roots has been identifying as a health and safety concern following a
serious critical injury by a member of the public, several near misses and accessibility
limitations as a result of uneven flooring and tripping hazards. Given the closure of the
building due to Covid-19, the opportunity to proceed with an epoxy covering was
presented.

EDTC-CW-13-20

1
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Background and Discussion
The lobby floor at Grey Roots has been flagged by health and safety due to its poor
accessibility and extreme tripping hazards. There has been one serious critical injury by
a member of the public, along with several near misses with staff and the public. Given
the demographic of our regular patrons (seniors and young children), it is critical that the
flooring be addressed to ensure the safety of all.
In order to address the floor, dust and debris barriers will need to be introduced to
protect the collections and artifacts, and the building will need to be closed to the public
and limited to staff. The process is expected to take approximately one month.
Given the closure of the building due to Covid-19, the opportunity to proceed with a nonslip epoxy covering was presented. With non-essential construction being approved to
proceed as of May 19, staff issued RFQ-EDTC-05-20 on May 25th and closed June 4th.
Five flooring companies were invited to submit quotations; however, only one bid was
received.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
There are no legal or legislated requirements relating to this report.

Financial and Resource Implications
This project was unbudgeted in 2020 and will be fully funded from the Grey Roots Main
Building Improvements Reserve with the endorsement of Council. The Grey Roots Main
Building Improvements Reserve had a December 31, 2019 year end balance of
$847,124.25.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal – Grey Roots staff, Director of Corporate Services, Purchasing, Human
Resources

☐

External – None

Appendices and Attachments
None.

EDTC-CW-13-20
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

TR-CW-13-20

Title:

Award of RFT-TS-01-20 Grey Roads 11 and 15 Rehabilitation

Prepared by:

Matt Marck, Engineering Manager
Sharon Melville, Buyer

Reviewed by:

Pat Hoy, Director of Transportation Services

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

Municipality of Meaford

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report TR-CW-13-20 containing the tender results for RFT-TS-01-20 Grey
Roads 11 and 15 Rehabilitation be received; and
2. That E.C. King Contracting be awarded the Tender for a total amount of
$1,537,910.25 excluding HST.

Executive Summary
This project consists of two schedules:
Schedule A: Grey Road 15 from 200 metres east of Queen Street / Tom Thompson Lane in
Leith to 600 metres south of Annan, for a total length of 2.3 kilometres of road rehabilitation and
reconstruction. This project includes the following:







3.50 metre lanes with 1.25 metre paved shoulders;
Guiderail upgrades and replacements;
Pulverize and pave rehabilitation;
Urban reconstruction with storm sewer and curb and gutter replacement in Annan;
The roadway will be open to traffic with intermittent alternating lane closures;
The anticipated project window falls between July 20, 2020 and
September 18, 2020.

TR-CW-13-20
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Schedule B: Grey Road 11 from 200 metres south of Highway 26, northerly to Highway 26 for a
total length of 0.2 kilometres of road rehabilitation. This project includes the following:





3.50 metre lanes with 1.25 metre paved shoulders;
Pulverize and pave rehabilitation;
The roadway will be open to traffic with intermittent alternating lane closures;
The anticipated project window falls between July 20, 2020 and
September 18, 2020.

The project was tendered as a complete award for the combined total of the two schedules.
It is recommended to award RFT-TS-01-20 to E.C. King Contracting for the bid amount of
$1,537,910.25 excluding taxes.

Background and Discussion
The Tender was posted on the Grey County website from May 13, 2020 until June 3, 2020. The
bids received are shown below:

RFT-TS-01-20 Tender Results
Number

Name of Bidder

Bid Amount (excluding taxes)

1

E.C. King Construction

$1,537,910.25

2

Harold Sutherland Construction Ltd.

$1,915,391.59

Legal and Legislated Requirements
None.

Financial and Resource Implications
Project Funding
Item

Excluding HST

Net HST

Approved Total Project Budget

$1,646,029.87

$1,675,000.00

Tender Award Amount

$1,537,910.25

$1,564,977.47

$153,791.03

$156,497.75

Construction Contingency (10%)
Total Tender Projected Costs

$1,721,475.22

Projected Deficit

TR-CW-13-20

$46,475.22
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The ten percent contingency is being applied to cover off fluctuations in the Asphalt Cement
Index and any unforeseen issues that may need to be addressed on this project.
Staff recommends that the shortfall for this project be funded from any surplus realized from
within the 2020 Capital construction budget, or if a surplus is not available, from the Federal
Gas Tax Reserve.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal

☐

External

Appendices and Attachments
Grey Road 11 Site Location Map
Grey Road 15 Site Location Map

TR-CW-13-20

63

June 25, 2020

Grey Road 11 Site Location Map
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Grey Road 15 Site Location Map
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

TR-CW-14-20

Title:

Award of RFT-TS-06-20 Grey Road 2 Rehabilitation

Prepared by:

Matt Marck, Engineering Manager
Sharon Melville, Buyer

Reviewed by:

Pat Hoy, Director of Transportation Services

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

The Blue Mountains

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report TR-CW-14-20 containing the tender results for RFT-TS-06-20 Grey
Road 2 Rehabilitation be received; and
2. That E.C. King Contracting be awarded the Tender for a total amount of
$1,315,291.37, excluding HST; and
3. That the Grey Road 2 Rehabilitation project be funded by utilizing available
Federal Gas Tax Reserve funding.

Executive Summary
The limits of this project are from Sideroad 18, northerly to 175 metres north of Sideroad 24 for
a total length of 3.86 kilometers. This project includes the following:







3.50 metre lanes with 1.25 metre paved shoulders;
Guiderail upgrades and replacements;
Culvert replacements;
Pulverize and pave rehabilitation;
The roadway will be open to traffic with intermittent alternating lane closures;
The anticipated project window falls between August 4, 2020 and
September 11, 2020.

TR-CW-14-20
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It is recommended to award RFT-TS-06-20 to E.C. King Contracting for the bid amount of
$1,315,291.37 excluding taxes.

Background and Discussion
The Tender was posted on the Grey County website from May 13, 2020 until June 3, 2020. The
bids received are shown below:

RFT-TS-06-20 Tender Results
Number

Name of Bidder

Bid Amount (excluding taxes)

1

Arnill Construction Ltd.

$1,394,888.13

2

E.C. King Construction

$1,315,291.37

3

Harold Sutherland Construction Ltd.

$1,420,419.44

Legal and Legislated Requirements
None.

Financial and Resource Implications
Project Funding
Item

Excluding HST

Net HST

Approved Project Budget

$1,480,640.72

$1,506,700.00

Tender Award Amount

$1,315,291.37

$1,338,440.50

$131,529.14

$133,844.05

Construction Contingency (10%)
Total Tender Projected Costs

$1,472,284.55

Projected Surplus

$34,415.45

The ten percent contingency is being applied to cover off fluctuations in the Asphalt Cement
Index and any unforeseen issues that may need to be addressed on this project.
Taxation funding in the amount of $1,506,700 was approved for this project in the 2020 budget.
In order to provide surplus taxation funds to assist with any corporate COVID-19 deficits in
2020, staff is recommending the use of approximately $505,000 in surplus budgeted 2020
Federal Gas Tax Reserve funding, and by funding the remailing or approximately $967,300 in
unbudgeted Federal Gas Tax Reserve funding for this project. This would then provide an
estimated $1,472,285 in surplus taxation, along with a surplus of approximately $831,000 in
taxation from Transportation Services projects that have been previously awarded to assist with
Corporate COVID-19 deficits.

TR-CW-14-20
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Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal

☐

External

Appendices and Attachments
Site Location Map

TR-CW-14-20
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Site Location Map
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

Addendum To TR-CW-15-19

Title:

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Rural and Northern
Communities Funding Stream Transfer Payment Agreement

Prepared by:

Pat Hoy, Director of Transportation Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

Municipality of West Grey

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Addendum to Report TR-CW-15-19 regarding the Ontario Government’s release of the
Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program: Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream
be received; and
2. That the Warden and Clerk be authorized to enter into the transfer payment agreement as
provided by the Province of Ontario to receive the funding; and
3. That the agreement be signed prior to Council approval as per Section 25.6 of Procedural Bylaw 5008-13.

Executive Summary
Grey County has been awarded $1,516,606 in federal and provincial funding under the Investing
in Canada Infrastructure Program to support the construction of a roundabout at Grey Road 3 and
Grey Road 4 in the Municipality of West Grey. On June 15, 2020 the Province provided a transfer
payment agreement (TPA) to be executed by July 10, 2020.

Background and Discussion
The intersection of Grey Road 3 and Grey Road 4 has the highest accident history in the
County. Transportation Services requested the grant to be used to complete a roundabout at
this intersection.

Addendum to TR-CW-15-19
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Updated information from Staff Report TR-CW-15-19 is below.

Environmental Assessment
Transportation Services originally indicated they would issue a request for proposal to complete
the environmental assessment as well as a preliminary design used to finalize land acquisition.
At this time, the final Environmental Assessment Class is still being reviewed by staff.
Environmental Assessment costs are eligible for funding under the program.

Updated Project Timeline
Milestone

Date

Application Submitted

May 14, 2019

The Province will Notify Applicants if their Project has been
Selected for Nomination to the Federal Government

Summer 2020

Applicants will be Notified of the Federal Funding Decision

Summer/fall 2020

Request for Proposal for Design Services

Summer 2020

Environmental Assessment Process

Fall 2020-2021

Land Acquisition (as required)

Summer 2021

Final Design and Move Utilities

Summer 2022

Construction

Summer 2023-2024

Project Completion Deadline

October 31, 2026

This intersection is currently in the Ten-Year Capital Plan for 2023-2024. It is hoped the project
could be accelerated to be completed in 2023.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
Consultation will be conducted as part of the environmental assessment process with the public,
adjacent landowners, agencies, indigenous communities and others as required.

Financial and Resource Implications
The majority of funding for eligible project costs (83.33%) will be provided via the grant. The
program requires the recipient to fund 16.67% of project costs. However, there are costs
associated with the project that are ineligible expenses under the program guidelines. Grey
County’s share of total project expenses is 21.8%. Below is a cost table for the project.

Addendum to TR-CW-15-19
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Eligible Costs:
Roundabout Construction Costs

$1,700,000.00

Design and Environmental Assessment

$120,000.00

Total Eligible Costs

$1,820,000.00

Ineligible Costs:
County of Grey Staff Time

$20,000.00

Land, Utilities and Stormwater Facilities

$100,000.00

Total Ineligible Costs

$120,000.00

Total Costs:
Total Eligible and Ineligible Costs

$1,940,000.00

Less: Federal Funding (50.00% of Eligible Costs)

($910,000.00)

Less: Provincial Funding (33.33% of Eligible Costs)

($606,606.00)

Remaining County of Grey share

$423,394.00

Relevant Consultation
☒

Internal
Finance Department

☐

External

Appendices and Attachments
Roundabout Preliminary Drawing
Investing In Canada Infrastructure Program 2019 Rural and Northern Communities Funding Stream
Guidelines
County of Grey Letter from Province
County of Grey Transfer Payment Agreement

Addendum to TR-CW-15-19
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Roundabout Preliminary Drawing
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June 12, 2020
The Honourable Steve Clark,
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
17th Floor, 777 Bay St.
Toronto, ON
M5G 2E5
Dear Minister Clark,
RE:

Town of Bracebridge Resolution regarding the establishment of a Municipal Financial
Assistance Program to offset the financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic

At its meeting of June 4, 2020, the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Bracebridge ratified motion
20-TC-089, regarding the Town of Bracebridge support for the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM)
recommendations contained in their report titled “Protecting Vital Municipal Services”, as follows:
“WHEREAS the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) issued a report titled “Protecting Vital
Municipal Services” on April 23, 2020 which included recommendations to the federal government to
provide financial assistance for municipalities across the country;
AND WHEREAS the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) recognizes that a collaborative federalprovincial effort is required to provide much needed financial assistance to municipalities and their May 14,
2020 letter (attached) to the Prime Minister and the Premier urges Canada and Ontario to extend their
successful collaboration through financial support for municipalities;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Town of Bracebridge supports the FCM recommendation
and requests that both the Federal and Provincial Governments establish a municipal financial assistance
program to offset the financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;
AND FURTHER THAT the Town of Bracebridge supports the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
in lobbying the Provincial Government for financial assistance to support Municipalities in offsetting the
financial impact of the COVID-19 pandemic;
AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Honorable Steve Clark, Minister, Municipal Affairs
and Housing, local Member of Parliament (MP) and local Member of the Ontario Legislature (MPP), FCM,
AMO and its member municipalities, and the Muskoka municipalities.”
In accordance with Council’s direction I am forwarding you a copy of the associated memorandum for you
reference.

74

Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can provide any additional clarification in this regard.
Yours truly,

Lori McDonald
Director of Corporate Services/Clerk
Copy: Scott Aitchison, MP, Parry Sound-Muskoka
The Honourable Norm Miller, MPP, Parry Sound-Muskoka
The Federation of Canadian Municipalities
Association of Municipalities Ontario and member municipalities
Muskoka Municipalities
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

FR-CW-16-20

Title:

2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast

Prepared by:

Kevin Weppler, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report FR-CW-16-20 regarding the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast be
received; and
2. That the First Year of the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast identified in Report
FR-CW-16-20 be used for planning purposes for the 2021 Budget and be included
in the County’s 2021 Budget for consideration by County Council; and
3. That as per the County’s Purchasing Procedures, staff be authorized to procure
up to 50% of gross expenditures contained in the first year of the Ten Year Capital
Forecast, prior to the annual budget being approved, as per the County’s
Purchasing Policy.

Executive Summary
This report provides Grey County’s anticipated capital expenditures over a 10 year planning
horizon from 2021 to 2030. With this information, Council will be better able to set strategies and
polices to ensure the long-term financial health of the County.
Corporate capital funding needs for 2021 total $17,218,300, which is $881,100 higher than the
Net Capital funding in the 2020 approved budget or a 1.47% levy increase.
With Council’s approval, the first year of the capital forecast will be used in preparing the 2021
County budget. This is a “living document”. Any changes to capital spending made during the
budget process will be incorporated into an updated forecast as will necessary revisions due to
resource availability, inflationary adjustments, needs studies and building condition
assessments, and available funding levels.

FR-CW-16-20
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Background and Discussion
Each department has reviewed their previous Ten Year Capital forecast and current information
regarding capital requirements and submitted an updated Ten Year Capital Forecast. These
departmental submissions are incorporated into the overall package as presented for the
Committee of the Whole’s review.
While the Municipal Act precludes the adoption of budgets which extend more than five years or
extend into the first year of a new council, looking at capital requirements over a 10-year horizon
is an important planning tool. Council’s review of the proposed capital spending by each
department as well as the financial impacts of the entire capital spending program are important
in order to ensure corporate financial stability and that projects move forward based on Council
priorities. This is an opportunity for Council members to recommend projects or consider
changes to project timing.
The 2021-2030 represents the third production of a Ten Year Capital Forecast. It is expected
that the 2021 capital costs in this report, will closely resemble the budget numbers submitted to
County Council in the overall 2021 annual budget package. Projects in the years 2026 through
to 2030 are not as well developed as those in the first few years of the forecast.
The capital plan as proposed requires a 2021 levy commitment of $17,218,300, which is an
increase of $881,100 as compared to the approved 2020 capital budget.
The County’s Asset Management Plan 2016, examined and graded the County’s state of the
infrastructure, both the current condition of these asset classes and the County’s financial
capacity to fund the asset’s average annual requirement for sustainability. The Asset
Management Plan recommended increasing investment in capital replacement, repairs and
maintenance 1.0% each year for the next 15 years in order to achieve full funding of the
requirements of the tax funded asset classes covered in the plan. Staff continue to refine the
Asset Management Plan and its requirements are scheduled to be updated in 2021 based upon
data collected in 2019 and 2020.
The net funding requirement for the Transportation Services - Construction, Resurfacing and
Minor Capital program has been increased by approximately 1% per year for the purpose of
phasing in full funding for these asset classes.
Grey County also updated its tangible capital asset accounting policies in March 2019 for use in
preparing the County’s 2018 financial statements. This has resulted in a lower amount of
amortization per year and these lifespans now more accurately reflect the reality of the useful
life of the assets.
This will also improve the reporting appearance of the financial health of the County’s assets as
the application of the updated useful lifespans will have an impact on the amount of depreciation
recorded for 2018 and future years.
The Tangible Capital Asset (TCA) Financial Indicator is a ratio that reveals as an asset ages,
the TCA Financial Indicator percentage will decrease. The newer the assets, the longer the
remaining life of the asset and the higher the percentage. With the updating of the County’s
tangible capital asset accounting policies and with the funding for capital being increased, this
has resulted in a positive impact to the County’s TCA Financial Indicator for 2018.

FR-CW-16-20
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Tangible Capital Asset Financial Indicator Ratio
2014
2015
2016
Grey County

42.67%

42.20%

41.42

2017

2018

2019

41.97%

43.49%

43.57%

County Council also implemented a Strategic Asset Management Policy in 2019 and is guiding
asset management practices and leading to more transparent and justifiable budgeting for
capital expenditures.
The following Table 1 - Corporate Capital Summary 2021-2030 provides a summary by
Function and Department for the 2021-2030 years. The numbers contained in this table are the
net levy requirements. The forecasted numbers include both transfers of funds to reserve as
well as funds from reserves, funding from senior levels of government, or other municipalities,
and or other partners. The net balance remaining represents the funding required through
taxation to proceed with these projects.
Being aware of longer-term financial requirements as well as immediate spending needs and
the resources available to support both, are necessary to help guide the annual budget
decision-making process.
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Table 1 - Corporate Capital Summary 2021-2030
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Detail
The 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast has been broken down into four functions: Corporate
Services, Planning and Community Development, Social Services, and Transportation and
Public Safety. Along with the consolidated capital summary are attached summaries by these
four functions detailing each project proposed in the 2021-2030 Forecast.
The consolidated package represents the corporate capital funding needs for 2021 in the
amount of $17,218,300, which is $881,100 higher than the Net Capital funding in the 2020
approved budget.
Staff has used assumptions in order to develop these ten year capital forecasts. These
assumptions do have funding risks. Future funding items, where confirmed, such as funding
from Federal Gas Tax funding, and the Ontario Community Infrastructure Fund, have only been
confirmed for the short term, and therefore these funding levels could be subject to change.
The Ten Year Capital Forecasts are also using estimates for inflation, building condition cost
assessments, condition assessment data, risk assessment and various studies. To project the
timing of future capital projects and their costs, projects are prioritized based on a number of
factors, including risk, legislative requirements, and what is the most effective timing of
rehabilitation to maximize the lifecycle of the asset.
The capital needs of Rockwood Terrace have been reviewed and capital building needs for this
building have not been included past the year 2025, with the requirement and Council’s
endorsement for this building to be redeveloped by 2025.
The County’s forecasted funding needs summarized in the above Table 1 – Corporate Capital
Summary 2021-2030 and as well in the attached summaries, include both transfers of funds to
reserve as well as funds from reserves. Funding from senior levels of government, or other
municipalities, and or other partners, has also been included. The net balance remaining
represents the funding required through taxation or the application of any one-time funding to
proceed with these projects.
The following table lists the notable items in the 2021-2023 years of the 2021-2030 Ten Year
Capital Forecast. The timing of a significant number of projects have been revised as a result of
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The 10 Year Capital Forecast for 2021-2030 and each capital project sheet can be viewed
electronically at the following link 2021-2030 Capital Forecasts.
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Table 2 - Notable Items in 2021-2023 of the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast
The following table provides a list of notable items that are being budgeted in the first three years of the ten year capital forecast. These items include items that are new to the
capital program, where the timing of the projects has been changed from the 2020-2029 plan, and/or where budgeted amounts have been changed significantly.
Function / Department

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item

Notable Change

Corporate Services

Finance

Corporate Procurement Software & Implementation
Multi-User Budgeting Software

Human Resources

Information Technology

$72,800 Included in 2020-2029 Forecast to occur in 2021. Have delayed
budgeted project to 2022 until Work Management software
implementation in Transportation Services has been completed and
Corporate Procurement Software has been implemented.

Human Resources Software Replacement

$300,000 Included in 2020-2029 Forecast to occur in 2020. Project has been
moved to 2022 to provide additional time to research and investigate
an appropriate software to meet the needs of the County of Grey.

Market Salary Review

$41,300 As the result of the current financial pressures of COVID-19, this
project has been postponed until 2022.

IT Security Audits

$22,000 2021 New to capital program.

Network Hardware Lifecycle Replacement

$0 Project sheet has been broken down into various components and new
projects sheets contained in the 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast:

Router/Firewall Lifecycle Management
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$100,000 2021 New to capital program.

$30,000
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Router/Firewall Lifecycle Management
Server Hardware Lifecycle Management

Function / Department

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Server Hardware Lifecycle Management

$52,300

Switches – Lifecycle Management

$29,800

Wireless Access Points

Information Technology (continued)

Notable Change




Switches – Lifecycle Management
Wireless Access Points
UPS (battery backup and power conditioning)

$9,500

UPS (battery backup and power conditioning)

$15,500

Long Term Care Server Room Climate Control

$15,000 2022 New to capital program.

IT Strategic Plan

$45,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Long Term Care Hardware Lifecycle Management

$254,000 2020 project. Moved back to 2021 Project scope change and
additional project funding required.

Telephone System Upgrade

$273,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2020.

IT – Telephone Review Consultant

$50,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020.

IT Network Cabinets, Cabling, and Supporting
Hardware

$11,000 2021 project. Funding of $10,000 included in 2020 budget. Additional
funding to complete additional required work.

Planning

Development Charges – 5 Year Review

$60,000 2021 project previously estimated at $50,000, now estimated at
$60,000 based on recent review prices from other municipalities.

Planning (continued)

Age-Friendly Community Strategy/Action Plan

$75,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020, to be fully funded from reserve.

Tourism

Tourism Signage

$80,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Planning and Community Development
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Function / Department

Grey Roots

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item

Store

$314,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020.

Replace Drywall in Temporary Exhibition Hall

$26,500 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Replace Heat Pumps

$345,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Economic Development, Tourism & Culture Strategic
Master Plan (Grey Roots)
Replace Package Rooftop Units

$36,000 2022 project. Moved forward from 2023 to align with Economic
Development and Tourism.
$75,000 in 2023 and 2024 project. Moved back from 2021 to line up with Flat Roof
2023, Replacement timelines.
$300,000 in
2024

Church
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Notable Change

$200,000 2024 project. Moved back from 2022.
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Function / Department

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item

Notable Change

Social Services
Social Services (OW and Childcare)

Housing

FR-CW-16-20

EarlyON Centre Accessibility Renovations

$25,000 in 2020 was the final year for this annual contribution to reserve.
2020, $0 in
2021-2023

EarlyON Centre Capital Improvements (BCA)

$19,800 in 2020 was the final year for this annual contribution to reserve.
2020, $0 in
2021-2023

Ceiling Replacement at EarlyON Centre

$45,600 2021 project. Moved back from 2020.

Electrical and Lighting at EarlyON Centre

$22,100 2021 project. Moved back from 2020.

Asphalt Parking Lot (248 Queen Street, Durham)

$20,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Asphalt Parking Lot (250 12th Avenue, Hanover)

$30,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Asphalt Parking Lot (481 11th Street, Hanover)

$20,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Asphalt Parking Lot (50 McNab Street, Chatsworth)

$35,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Asphalt Parking Lot (81 Bruce Street, Thornbury)

$35,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.
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Function / Department
Housing (continued)

FR-CW-16-20

Asphalt Replacement (157 Nelson Street, Meaford)

$30,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Bath Rebuild (315 Bruce Street, Durham)

$90,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Exterior Door Replacement (40 Artemesia Street,
Dundalk)

$25,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Exterior Doors (Family Units Paul & Collingwood
Streets, Meaford)

$25,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Exterior Doors and Suite Doors (208 Queen Street,
Durham)

$75,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Exterior Doors/Front Entrance Design (157 Nelson
Street, Meaford)

$35,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.
Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Kitchen Rebuild (43 Hill Street, Flesherton)

Notable Change

$60,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Kitchen Rebuilds (650 4th Street A East, Owen Sound)

$400,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Parking Lot (80 Victoria St, Meaford).

$150,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Siding Replacement (43 Hill Street, Flesherton).

$10,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

Window Replacement (121 William Street, Meaford)

$40,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.
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Window Replacement (80 Victoria Street, Meaford)
Common Room Furniture

$30,000 2021 and 2022 projects. Increased funding by $10,000 for each year.

Consulting Fees

$45,000 2021 project. Increased funding by $15,000.

Hot Water Tank Replacement

$15,000 Increased project amount annually by $15,000 plus inflation.

Landscaping (80 Victoria Street, Meaford)

$10,000 2021 to 2023 project. Added $10,000 for each year.

Roof Replacement (Westmount Family Units, Owen
Sound)

$25,000 2021 project. Increased funding by $10,000.

Water System Upgrades (Flesherton and Holstein)
Retaining Wall (40 Artemesia Street, Dundalk)

Housing (continued)

FR-CW-16-20

$5,000 2021 to 2024 projects. Decreased to $5,000 each year.
$20,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Kitchen Replacement (80 Victoria Street, Meaford)

Function / Department

$220,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 due to challenges related to
COVID-19.

$375,000 2022 project. New to capital program.

Asphalt Parking Lot (305 14th Street West, Owen
Sound)

$75,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Asphalt Paving (225 14th Street West, Owen Sound)

$36,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Balconies and Railings (248 7th Avenue, Owen Sound)

$40,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Balcony Decks and Railings (50 McNab Street,
Chatsworth)

$35,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.
Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Balcony Decks and Railings (250 12th Avenue,
Hanover)

Notable Change

$45,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.
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Balcony Decks and Railings (481 11th Street, Hanover)

$40,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Bath Rebuilds (43 Hill Street, Flesherton)

$60,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Common Area Flooring (130 Albert Street, Meaford)

$55,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Concrete replacement (481 11th Street, Hanover)

$40,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Emergency Generator (181 Victoria Street, Dundalk)

$50,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Emergency Generator (250 12th Avenue, Hanover)

$40,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Emergency Generator (650 4th Street A East, Owen
Sound)

$60,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Patio Door Replacement (250 12th Avenue, Hanover)

$25,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Siding and Window Replacement (208 Queen Street,
Durham)

$75,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Water Pipe Replacement & Lighting Upgrades (40
Artemesia Street, Dundalk)

$70,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Water Pipe Replacement & Lighting Upgrades (181
Victoria Street, Dundalk)

$100,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Window Replacement (130 Rowe’s Lane, Dundalk)

$30,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Window Replacement (315 Bruce Street, Durham)

$35,000 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Air Makeup Replacement (43 Hill Street, Flesherton)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Air Makeup Replacement (248 7th Avenue East, Owen
Sound)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Air Makeup System (225 14th Street West, Owen
Sound)

$60,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.
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Asphalt Replacement (315 Bruce Street, Durham)
Function / Department
Housing (continued)

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item

Notable Change

Asphalt Replacement (40 Artemesia Street, Dundalk)

$20,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Balconies and Railings (100 Marg Elizabeth, Markdale)

$50,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Bathroom Upgrades (81 Bruce Street, Thornbury)

$160,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Ceiling and Lighting Upgrades (490 7th Avenue East,
Owen Sound)

$50,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Common Area Flooring (121 William Street, Meaford)

$75,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Emergency Generator (17 Legion Road, Meaford)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Emergency Generator (208 Queen Street, Durham)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Emergency Generator (41 Mark Street, Markdale)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Emergency Generator (81 Bruce Street, Thornbury)

$40,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Kitchen Rebuilds (248 7th Avenue East, Owen Sound)

$120,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Parking Lot Paving (Main Street, Holstein)

$30,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Roof & Eavestrough Replacement (315 Bruce Street,
Durham)

$45,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Roof & Eavestrough Replacement (481 11th Street,
Hanover)

$55,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Roof Replacement (Meaford Family Units)

$120,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.

Water Pipe Replacement (214 11th Avenue, Hanover)
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$25,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022.
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$50,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022

Grey Gables

Window Replacement (157 Nelson Street, Meaford)

$20,000 2023 project. Moved back from 2022

Laundry Equipment

$25,000 2020 project. Portion of project carried forward to 2021 due to
challenges related to COVID-19

Retaining Wall

$20,000 2020 project. Project carried forward to 2021 due to challenges
related to COVID-19.

Function / Department
Grey Gables (continued)

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Surface Drainage and Eavestrough

$35,000 2023 project moved forward with $15,000 additional funding included.

Doors (entrance, interiors, systems)

$30,000 2026 project moved forward with $10,600 less funding required.

Parking Lot, Curbs and Guards

$481,300 2021 project moved back to 2024 to coincide with Hospital build and
long-term care redevelopment.

Window Sill Replacement

$25,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Plumbing fixtures Replacement

$20,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Painting of Common Rooms, Hallways

$16,000- 2021 and 2022 projects. Deleted from capital program as work is
$17,000 completed annually through operating budget.

Re-Caulking

Lee Manor

$13,000 2023 project. Deleted from capital program as work is completed
annually through operating budget.

Redevelopment of Resident Common Area and Staff
Area on Main Floor
Blanket/Towel Warmers

FR-CW-16-20

Notable Change

$102,000 2020 project. Project carried forward to 2021 due to challenges
related to COVID-19 and funding increased by $2,000.
$10,000 2021 project. New to capital program.
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Rockwood Terrace

Furniture – Resident Lounges and Dining Rooms

$50,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Draperies/Blinds

$25,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Re-Caulking

$55,000 2021 project. Deleted from capital program as work is completed
annually through operating budget.

Blanket/Towel Warmers

$11,600 2021 project. Reduced funding by $8,400.

Re-Caulking

$23,200 2021 project. Deleted from capital program as work is completed
annually through operating budget.

Transportation and Public Safety
Paramedic Services

Cardiac Monitors/Defibrillators

$742,100 Increasing quantity to 20 (from 18) to equip first response and
Community Paramedicine vehicles (increase of $74,200)

Emergency Response Units

FR-CW-16-20

$78,500 Increased lifespan of Incident Response Unit (trailer) from 15 to 20
years (moved to 2030)
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Function / Department
Paramedic Services (continued)

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
New Paramedic Services Base – Durham

Notable Change

$1,596,700 Build new base in Durham on site of new Rockwood Terrace in 2025,
putting away funds starting 2021 with intent to self finance over 15
years. Will address issues with ventilation, mould, temperature
control and move equipment storage from the garage area.

Tablet Computers for Ambulances

$92,500 2021 project, moved from 2022. Existing computers will be retained so
that one computer remains in the ambulance and the other in the
base. It is expected that this will reduce repair costs.

Transfer to/from Reserve (BCA) Station Capital
Repairs

$52,800 Increase transfer to reserve to provide funds for future repairs at the
Chatsworth station (in service 2019)

Transportation Services

Transportation Services – Construction,
Resurfacing and Minor Capital

Grey Road 15 Retaining Wall & Hydro Moves: 28th St
(15033)

$350,000 2021 project in combination with Grey Road 15 Rehabilitation-3rd Ave.
East to 600m North of 32nd Street East (Part 15033 & 15036). Moved
back from 2020.

Structure 009-900 Grey Road 9 Lot 13, Conc XIII/XIV,
Normanby

$561,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020. Project costs also reduced to
$561,000 from designing in-house.

Structure 900-272: Orchardville Bridge Removal

$127,500 2021 project. Moved back from 2020.

Grey Road 3 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation: 250m
north of Grey Road 16 - Grey Road 5
West Jct. (3060)
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$1,311,600 2021 project. Moved forward from 2022 to align with Grey Road 16
Reconstruction.

Grey Road 3 Pulverize & Pave Rehabilitation: West
Jct. Grey Road 5 - East Jct. Grey Road 5

$704,200 2021 project. Moved forward from 2022 to align with Grey Road 16
Reconstruction.

(3063)
Grey Road 5 Pulverize & Pave Rehabilitation: 0.6 km
West of Grey Road 3 to Grey Road 3

$229,500 2021 project. Moved forward from 2022 to align with Grey Road 16
Reconstruction.

(5005)
Grey Road 16 Pulverize & Pave Rehabilitation: Grey
Road 10 - 300m west of Grey Road 3

$1,967,600 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 prior to 2020 Budget.

(16003)
Function / Department
Transportation Services – Construction,
Resurfacing and Minor Capital (continued)

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Grey Road 17 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation:
Concession 14 to Wolseley (17011, 17012,

Notable Change

$2,352,000 2021 project. Moved forward from 2023.

17013)

FR-CW-16-20

Grey Road 40 Overlay: Gore Crescent to Veterans
Road North (40033, 40034)

$464,600 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 prior to 2020 Budget.

Grey Road 119 Stormwater Diversion – Construction

$306,000 2021 project. Moved back from 2020 prior to 2020 Budget by Town of
Blue Mountains.

Grey Road 19 and Grey Road 21 Intersection
Upgrades (Utility Relocations)

$1,020,000 2021 project. Utility relocations required in advance of Grey Road
19/21 roundabout construction in 2022.

Grey Road 170 Overlay: Copper Kettle to Shallow
Lake (170003-170009)

$1,040,400 2021 project. New to capital program. To be completed along with
Grey Road 17 project south of Wolseley.
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Structure 004-274 and 004-275 Barrier Replacement
- Grey Road 4 at west end of Hanover

$612,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Grey Road 2 Pulverize & Pave Rehabilitation: Grey
Road 19 - Grey Road 119 (2030-2036)

$2,340,900 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Grey Road 8 Overlay: Highway 89 to Grey Road 9
(8003-8015)

$1,400,600 2022 project. Moved back from 2021.

Grey Road 10 Reconstruction: South Limit of
Elmwood (Parker Street) - North Limit of Elmwood

$2,813,200 2022 project. Moved back from 2021. Project led by Bruce County.

(300 m North of Church Street) (10045-10048)
Grey Road 13 Pulverize and Pave: Grey Road 40 to
10th Line (13054)
Grey Road 17B Urbanization: Somers St. to Highway
21 (17B009-17B012)

Grey Road 18 Pulverize & Pave: Grey Road 11 - Grey
Road 29 (18015 - 18018)
Structure 13-092 - Fibre Wrap

Function / Department
Transportation Services – Construction,
Resurfacing and Minor Capital (continued)
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$397,200 2022 project. Moved forward from 2024.
$867,000 in 2021 and 2022 project. Moved back from 2021. Total project costs
2021 also reduced by $2,338,000 from change of scope in project for the
east/west portion.
$2,517,200 in
2022
$3,641,400 2022 project. Moved forward from 2024.
$520,200 2022 project. New to capital program. Project dependant on outcome
of structural monitoring report (Report TR-CW-11-20)
Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Grey Road 4 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation: 1 km
West of Grey Road 3 - Grey Road 3 (4022)
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Notable Change

$396,800 2023 project. Moved forward from 2024.

Grey Road 4 and Grey Road 3 Intersection
Improvements

$1,804,100 2023 project. Moved forward from 2024.

Grey Road 5 Rehabilitation/Reconstruction - 0.6 km
East of 9th Ave E to 16th Avenue East Owen Sound
(5048)

$636,700 2023 project. Project costs reduced by $1,259,721 from adjustment in
project scope.

Grey Road 5 Rehabilitation/Reconstruction - 16th
Ave E to 20th Ave E Owen Sound (5051)

$2,546,900 2023 project. Project costs reduced by $889,822 from adjustments in
project length.

Grey Road 7 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation: 2.8
km north of Grey Road 13 to Sideroad 22B

$2,759,100 2023 project. Moved forward from 2025.

(7006,7009)
Grey Road 19 Urban 4 Laning: Grey Road 21 to Grey
Road 119 (19030)

$5,093,800 2023 project. Moved back from 2021. Project costs also reduced by
$744,925 from adjustments in project length.

Grey Road 3 and Grey Road 16 Intersection
Improvements - Keady (16006,16009,3057,3058)

$1,298,900 2024 project. Moved back from 2020 prior to 2020 Budget.

Grey Road 5 Reconstruction: 1st Street SW - 1st
Street East (Harrison Park Entrance) (5024-

$2,149,400 2024 project. Moved back from 2022.

5027)
Grey Road 30 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation:
Lower Valley Road to Grey Road 13 (30006-

$1,441,400 2024 project. Moved back from 2022.

30007)
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Grey Road 7 Pulverize & Pave Rehabilitation: Grey
Road 40 - 4 Sideroad (7015-7018)

$1,531,900 2025 project. Moved back from 2020 prior to 2020 Budget.

Grey Road 31 Overlay: Grey Road 2 to Simcoe Road
91 (31003-31015)

$1,371,900 2025 project. Moved back from 2022.
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Function / Department
Transportation Services – Facilities – Deports
and Domes

Capital
Budget
Amount

Budget Item
Patrol D Dundalk Dome Repairs

$50,000 2021 project. New to capital program.

Patrol B Clarksburg - Remove Underground Fuel
Storage Tanks

$105,000 2022 project. Moved forward from 2024.

Patrol B Clarksburg Parking Lot, Curbs and Retaining
Wall

$389,400

Patrol B Clarksburg Roll Up Doors

Transportation Services – Machinery

2022 project. Moved forward from 2024.

$58,500 2024 project. Moved back from 2022.

Purchase of Half-ton Trucks

$144,700 2021 project. Purchasing two additional half-tons to the fleet as well
as replacing two existing half tons.

Purchase of Tandem Trucks

$660,200 2021 project. Purchasing two additional tandems to the fleet.

Purchase of Gradall

$666,600 2021 project. Moved back from 2020. Purchase cost increased from
$400,000 to reflect increase in Gradall prices as well as purchasing
additional attachments for the Gradall to make it more versatile and
efficient.

Purchase of Ontario Works Passenger Vans

FR-CW-16-20

Notable Change

$42,300 2022 project. Moved back from 2019.
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Legal and Legislated Requirements
Section 291of the Municipal Act provides parameters and limitations which preclude the
adoption of budgets that extend more than five years. A multi-year forecast, is not encumbered
by such limitation. A multi-year forecast is a useful budgeting tool to provide information to help
guide annual budget decision-making.

Financial and Resource Implications
The 2021-2030 Ten Year Capital Forecast as presented will require $17,218,300 in taxation for
the 2021 budget year or an additional $881,100 in taxation, or a 1.47% levy increase.
To undertake all of the capital budget projects as presented in this corporate budget package, a
budget increase would need to occur or the application of other one time funding sources would
be required.

Relevant Consultation
_X_

Internal (list) – Senior Management Team, Senior Managers and Finance Staff

___

External (list)

Appendices and Attachments
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Corporate Capital Forecast Summary 2021-2030
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Corporate Services Capital Forecast Summary 2021-2030
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Planning and Community Development Capital Forecast Summary 20212030
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Social Services Capital Forecast Summary 2021-2030
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Transportation and Public Safety Capital Forecast Summary 2021-2030
Attachment to FR-CW-16-20 Transportation Services Capital Projects Map 2021-2030
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

FR-CW-17-20

Title:

Corporate Financial Update and Year-End Projection as of April
30, 2020

Prepared by:

Kevin Weppler, Director of Corporate Services

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected:

Not applicable

Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report FR-CW-17-20 regarding a Corporate Financial Update and Year-End
Projection to April 30, 2020 be received; and
That due to the major impact COVID-19 has had on municipal finances by
reducing revenues and increasing costs, that Grey County support efforts by the
Federation of Canadian Municipalities and Association of Municipalities of Ontario
to request further financial supports from the Federal and Provincial governments
to offset COVID-19 financial impacts.

Executive Summary
This report provides staff’s first projection to year-end based on revenues and expenditures to
April 30, 2020. The report summarizes any variances that are being projected for the various
departmental operations and reflects the potential financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic
discussed in report FR-CW-11-20. A high-level variance analysis and a set of County financial
statements are attached.

Background and Discussion
The purpose of this report is to provide a corporate financial update for all County departments based
upon financial statements as of April 30, 2020.
Each Department reviews its actual to budget figures, projects a year-end position by estimating results
still to happen and makes some assumptions on the impact of COVID-19. These adjustments have been
incorporated into each Department’s projections in this report. Highlights of the financial statements
and variances are as follows:
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 Administration: Staffing vacancies, staffing changes, reductions in staff training, conferences,
travel, etc. are impacting the various Corporate Administration budgets and providing
approximately $251,600 in projected surplus funds. Investment income is projected to be
lower by $200,000 with interest rates being lower than what had been budgeted. This
reduction in income is a result of the Bank of Canada’s reductions to interest rates, with
interest rates being reduced by 1.50% in March.
As per policy, the net revenue budgeted from investment income that exceeds 1% of the
County’s own purpose levy is to be placed in a one-time funding reserve for use in funding nonrecurring expenditures. Therefore, with the projected loss in investment income, the 2020
transfer to reserve can be reduced to correlate to this reduction and reduce this impact to the
Administration budget portfolio. With this reserve transfer reduction, it is anticipated the
Administration budgets will end the year with an estimated positive variance of $251,600.
 Council: The Council budget is anticipated to end the year with a surplus of approximately
$58,000 with savings in salaries and benefits, travel, meal and accommodations as a result of
Covid-19 requiring virtual meetings and fewer committee meetings occurring.
 Information Services: The Information Services budget is anticipated to end the year with a
surplus of $23,600. Savings in computer software expenditures, desktop computer hardware
costs, and reduced staff training and development costs are the main contributors to this
projected surplus.
 Weekly Indemnity and Workers’ Compensation: The Weekly Indemnity (Short Term Disability)
and Workers’ Compensation budgets are self-insured plans. The premiums charged to County
Departments are shown in these budgets as a source of revenue and are used to pay the costs
to administer these self-insured plans. The Weekly Indemnity costs are anticipated to end the
year with a shortfall of $66,200 and assumes that the number and length of weekly indemnity
claims will remain at the current level.
The Workers’ Compensation budget is projecting a year-end deficit of $192,000. The biggest
cost drivers are claims where employees have been unable to return to work for a significant
period of time and the number and duration of claims. COVID-19 has also impacted employees’
ability to receive treatment from physiotherapists, chiropractors etc.
The number of PTSD/Traumatic Mental Stress claims and associated costs reaffirm the need for
the peer support and early intervention program that Council approved for Paramedic Services.
If year-end projections are correct and this deficit is realized, the applicable reserve could be
utilized to offset this shortfall.
 Assessment: The costs for the services of the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
(MPAC) will end the year on budget.
 Provincial Offences: This budget is projected to end the year with a shortfall of $33,000 after
cost sharing with Bruce County. Gross revenues are $245,100 lower than budgeted as of the
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end of April with Grey County’s share being $143,700. Final ticket volume and revenue are
difficult to predict based on the first four months of the year, the decrease in tickets written
during the pandemic, the uncertainty of when court will reopen and when tickets will be paid.
Approximately 963 fewer tickets were issued in the first four months of 2020 compared to the
same time period in 2019. The decline in revenue has been offset by a decrease in
expenditures as the result of the shutdown of court proceedings. After taking into
consideration the projected revenue shortfall, offset by savings in salary and benefit lines as the
result of redeployment and savings in lines relating to the operation of court, Grey County’s
portion of the shortfall is projected to be $33,000. If the revenue shortfall is greater than
anticipated and increases to $500,000 for example, a shortfall of $167,00 after cost sharing
with Bruce County could be expected.
 Health Unit and Other Funding Initiatives: It is anticipated that the Health Unit budget will end
the year on budget. The Heath Unit’s expenditures related to COVID-19 expenditures have
been projected to be $250,000 for 2020. The Provincial Government has announced that the
expenditures related to COVID-19, that these emergency expenses will be funded by the
Province, if they exceed the Health Unit’s 2020 total budget.
The 2020 budget provided a transfer to reserve for Health Care Initiatives and a payment for the
Marine Emergency Duties Training Centre at Georgian College. Funding provided in the 2020
budget is sufficient with payments and transfers being allocated as approved.
 Property: The operating budgets for the Administration and Morrison Buildings are projected
to end the year with a $5,000 operating surplus. Savings in salaries and benefits from an
unfilled student position are offset with higher than expected cleaning supplies for the
Administration building resulting from COVID-19 pandemic. With exception for the debenture
payment, the capital projects are funded from reserve and are expected to remain on budget.
 Taxation, Grants and Other. No year-end position has been projected for supplementary
taxation and write-offs at this time. These tax adjustments will not be known until later in the
year when supplementary taxation and write-off estimates are provided to the County by local
municipal staff. The 2020 budget estimated that supplementary taxation revenue would
exceed taxation write-offs, vacancy rebates, and other reductions by $374,800.
 Planning: The Planning operating and capital budgets are anticipated to end the year with a
surplus of $24,000. A surplus is expected in the operating budget as a result of staff being
redeployed and their wages being expensed to other departments, as well as staff on leave as a
result of the pandemic. At this time with current predictions, the wage and benefits surplus
from redeployment and leaves is estimated to be at least $24,000. The application revenue
received to date is close to the year-to-date (YTD) budgeted amount and staff anticipate that
other applications will be submitted prior to year-end. Therefore, at this stage we anticipate the
revenue will be close to the budgeted amount.
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With respect to the Planning Capital budget, due to pandemic restrictions limiting opportunities
for public engagement, staff are recommending that the Age Friendly Community Strategy be
delayed until 2021. This project was to be funded from reserves so there would be no surplus.
Staff are also waiting for regulations regarding the Community Benefits Charge to be finalized
and therefore the funds budgeted for this initiative could be expensed either later this year or
could be deferred to 2021 as well.
 Agriculture: The Agriculture budget is anticipated to end the year on budget. The current
variance between net YTD budget and actual amounts is due to all payments to other
organizations already having been paid in full for the year; this variance is predicted to decrease
to nil by year-end. As of the end of April, coyote grant expenditures are on track; however
beaver grant expenditures are lower than what was budgeted. If this continues there could be
a slight surplus at year-end, but it is currently too early to tell.
 Forestry: The Forestry budget and Forestry Trails budget are currently on track. Forestry
activities generally occur later in the year, therefore the current appearance of underspending
will even out by year end; however, there could be delays in certain projects due to pandemic
related restrictions and impacts to staff resources and contract staff resources.
 Trails: The Trails operating and capital budgets are anticipated to end the year on budget or
potentially end with a surplus depending on whether certain projects are deferred as a result of
pandemic restrictions and/or limited staff/contract resources. The replacement of Culvert 80
has been tendered and awarded and has come in slightly under budget (budgeted amount was
$243,300 and the awarded amount is $215,706). This project is funded from reserve and
therefore no surplus is realized. Culvert 5A and Culvert 15A were slated for replacement/repair
this year and it is possible that these could be completed before year-end, however these could
also be delayed due to pandemic related restrictions and/or staff resources. These projects are
funded from reserve and therefore there will be no surplus.
 Economic Development & Tourism: The Economic Development and Tourism budgets,
operating and capital, are anticipated to end the year on budget. As a result of the pandemic,
economic development and tourism budgets are being combined to best serve our
stakeholders through a refocus of projects and initiatives to support economic recovery.
Staff amended plans for Sydenham Campus in March when County buildings closed due to
COVID-19 to reduce the deficit potential, understanding revenue projections would not be met
as a result of the pandemic. Even with this, staff anticipated a $76,000 deficit resulting from
fixed costs. This deficit was been absorbed in the economic development and tourism operating
budgets prior to the recovery refocus to ensure the department would remain on budget. The
capital budget for Sydenham is anticipated to end the year on budget due to the successful
receipt of a $58,000 rural economic development grant for infrastructure improvement.
 Grey Roots: Grey Roots is anticipating that operating budgets will end the year with a $155,000
surplus. While revenue will be down considerably due to the closure and anticipated limited
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reopening as a result of COVID-19, there will be budget savings due to staff redeployment, the
decision to forgo hiring of summer staff and the postponement of the travelling exhibit.
Redeployment savings may need to be used to offset other corporate deficits due to COVID-19.
Staff estimate that all revenue categories will decline by 50%-75%. Grey Roots is projecting a
capital shortfall of $10,000 due to unexpected additional roof repairs. Staff will look for capital
savings to offset this expected shortfall.
 Ontario Works: The Ontario Works and Administration combined budgets are projected to
have a $160,200 surplus at year end. With fewer clients leaving social assistance, the current
average monthly caseload is 1,376 compared to the anticipated 1,340. Basic Needs and Shelter
are currently overspent and additional COVID-19 related Discretionary Benefits for social
assistance clients and Emergency Benefit requests from individuals continue to be received. As
of the end of April, $155,140 of additional benefits have been paid. However, there is no net
levy impact as all social assistance expenses are 100% provincially funded. Due to the
pandemic, senior denture expenses are currently underspent. These costs are expected to
increase as denture clinics reopen but a small surplus of $5,000 in the Social Assistance budget
is anticipated by year end because Public Health is now offering support for senior dentures as
well.
Ontario Works Administration and Employment Support budgets are projected to end the year
with approximately $145,500 in gross salary savings with staff vacancies and fewer part time van
driver hours. Staff who have retired or resigned will not be replaced this year due to the
pandemic, and a student was not hired for the summer. There are also savings anticipated in
Getting Ahead Workshops with fewer workshops due to COVID-19, as well as savings in staff
training, conferences and travel. These savings are helping to offset additional pandemic
related emergency management purchases. The net result of these operational savings is
expected to be a surplus of $155,200 by year end.
 Children’s Services: As of June 12th, the childcare sector entered the re-opening phase after
being closed by emergency order on March 17th. An expenditure and funding reconciliation
are currently being worked on, and with provincial and federal support, the Children’s Services
budgets are expected to end the year on budget. The ministry has stated that the funding
reconciliation for the closure and reopening periods and any subsequent funding adjustments
will not place undue hardship on municipal budgets.
During the closure period, funding has been provided to Childcare Operators for eligible fixed
overhead costs. Upon reopening, childcare centres are required to follow strict health and
safety requirements and will have reduced capacity in the number of children to allow for
physical distancing. Provincial funding will be provided to support centres, but in order to
eliminate financial hardship on families, this funding is contingent on operators not increasing
parent fees at this time. Along with other operating costs, the funding will cover the additional
cost of these vacancies, increased staffing needs for screening, personal protective equipment
and enhanced cleaning costs.
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Fixed Operating funding will continue to flow to centres that choose to remain closed at this
time. EarlyON centres and Indigenous Led programs remain closed until further notice but
funding will continue to support virtual programming that is being made available to families.
Similarly, Special Needs Resourcing (SNR) funding is available to cover fixed operating costs and
the expense of SNR services provided.
The Ministry of Education has implemented a funding reconciliation process for the closure and
reopening periods and will incorporate fixed costs and reopening costs that are reported by
childcare centres. Children’s Services staff are currently working with operators and the
Ministry to determine provincial and federal funding requirements that will support and ensure
sustainability of the childcare sector.
 Housing: Staffing vacancies, staffing changes, reductions in staff training, conferences, travel,
and lower than anticipated heating repairs are impacting Housing budgets and providing
approximately $170,000 operating budget surplus. As of April 30, tenant related revenue was
higher than projected. Move outs have declined with tenants staying in place during the
pandemic. There have been 33 unit turnovers as of April 30 (or 3.3% of the total units). At this
pace there will be less unit turnovers than 2019 which had 114 move outs and 2018 with 104.
The operating budget line for painting totals $43,544 and as of April 30, 82% of this budget had
been utilized. Overall, this line is estimated to be approximately $40,000 over budget. In the
2020 budget, Housing planned to bring a painter in-house but due to the pandemic, this new
hire was delayed and so the Housing department must still rely on external painters. The utility
costs are a challenge to predict and for most buildings this early in the year, based upon
comparison with 2019 year-to-date actuals, the combined utilities budgets should finish the year
on budget.
Staff assumes that the budgets for property taxes and insurance will be sufficient; actual costs
will be known when the next report based on September financial statements is presented.
The budget for Non-Profit Housing may generate small savings when year-end reconciliations of
the subsidy entitlements are completed. The various Housing Programs (Investment in
Affordable Housing, Social Infrastructure Fund, Canada-Ontario Community Housing Initiative
etc.) are 100% Ministry funded and will not generate savings.
The Housing capital budget is expected to end the year on target. Approximately seventeen
projects originally scheduled to be completed in 2020 will be deferred into 2021 due to the
difficulties performing construction work during the global pandemic. Any taxation raised for
these projects will be moved to the reserve for use in 2021.
 Long-Term Care department: Over the past two months, the COVID-19 pandemic has
had a significant impact on the finances and operations of the County of Grey LongTerm Care department. The financial implications of COVID-19 are difficult to predict at
this time, given the uncertainty of provincial funding regarding extraordinary
expenditures and the unknown duration of time this pandemic will last. Complicating
the financial forecast are such matters as: the potential for residents and/or staff to
become ill with the virus, causing an outbreak, availability and cost of personal
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protective equipment (PPE), and the additional expenditures required to protect the
homes if social distancing restrictions are relaxed in the future.
Expenditures related to COVID-19 have been put into place as a result of provincial
directives that have been received from either the Ministry of Long-Term Care, Ministry
of Health, or the Chief Medical Officer of Health for Ontario. This includes increased
spending relating to additional staff, personal protective equipment, cleaning supplies,
equipment to support infection prevention and control measures, and screening and
testing initiatives.
Long-term care staff will continue to work closely with staff from Finance, Human
Resources and Purchasing to ensure responsible emergency response spending. In the
coming months, staff will consider the actions that can be taken to help mitigate costs
and reduce future deficits.
 Grey Gables: Grey Gables is expected to end the year with an operating deficit in the
range of $135,500 to $383,400. It is expected that salaries and associated benefits will
be $475,000 over budgeted. To maintain the safety of the staff and residents, it is
estimated that the cost of personal protective equipment and cleaning supplies will be
$113,000 over what was budgeted. At this time, Grey Gables has received $100,600 in
COVID-19 funding and will receive $104,000 in additional funding for the two beds
licensed on March 25, 2020 for a total of $204,600 in additional Ministry funding which
will be used to partially offset the COVID expenditures.
Grey Gables’ capital budget is anticipated to end the year on target. Two of Grey
Gables’ capital projects, the provision of laundry equipment and the replacement of a
retaining wall, will be delayed into 2021 due to COVID and the inability to proceed with
non-essential construction. The remaining capital projects per the 2020 approved
budget are scheduled to continue as planned.
 Lee Manor: Lee Manor is expected to end the year with an operating deficit in the
range of $152,600 to $481,500. It is expected that salaries and associated benefits will
be $660,000 over budgeted. To maintain the safety of the staff and residents, it is
estimated that the cost of personal protective equipment and cleaning supplies will be
$172,000 over what was budgeted. Increased security costs, which were not budgeted,
are anticipated to cost $24,000.
At this time, Lee Manor has received $117,200 in COVID-19 funding and will receive
$52,000 in additional funding for the one bed licensed on March 25, 2020. It was
recently discovered that Structural Compliance of $22,812 per month for Lee Manor will
continue until further notice. Since County staff only budgeted for three months of
Structural Compliance, this provides an additional unbudgeted amount of nine months
of Structural Compliance totaling $205,300 in funding. This provides a total of $374,500
in additional Ministry funding which will be used to partially offset the COVID related
expenditures.
Lee Manor’s capital budget is anticipated to end the year on target. One of Lee Manor’s
capital projects, the redevelopment of resident common area and staff area on main
floor, will be delayed to 2021 due to COVID and the inability to proceed with nonFR-CW-17-20
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essential construction. The remaining capital projects per the 2020 approved budget
are scheduled to continue as planned.
 Rockwood Terrace: Rockwood Terrace is expected to end the year with an operating
deficit in the range of $119,400 to $507,600. It is expected that salaries and associated
benefits will be $405,000 over budgeted. To maintain the safety of the staff and
residents, it is estimated that the cost of personal protective equipment and cleaning
supplies will be $150,000 over what was budgeted. Increased PSW agency staffing
costs, which are also not budgeted, are anticipated to cost $174,000.
At this time, Rockwood Terrace has received $117,400 in COVID-19 funding and will
receive $104,000 in additional funding for the two beds licensed on March 25, 2020 for a
total of $221,400 in additional Ministry funding which can be used to offset COVIDrelated expenses.
Rockwood Terrace’s capital budget is anticipated to end the year on target. There is a
need to provide a safe, comfortable environment while balancing the need to redevelop, so
capital projects are only undertaken if necessary.
 Long Term Care Redevelopment: Any expenditures incurred in 2020 will be
recommended to be funded from any surplus within the Long-Term Care budget
portfolio and if insufficient, from the Long-Term Care Redevelopment Reserve. At this
time, there have been few expenditures incurred.
 Transportation Services: The Transportation Services Department is projecting to end
the year with a $105,000 operating budget shortfall and a $817,700 capital budget
surplus. Pavement Marking is forecasting to be overspent by $50,000 due to an
increase of 40% in the previous year cost of paint unit rates. Facilities, Depots & Domes
is forecasting to be overspent by $25,000 due to unexpected replacements of overhead
garage door motors in the Chatsworth, Clarksburg and Ayton Depots that failed over the
winter months. The Geotechnical Investigations budgeted for 2020 has been overspent
by $30,000 due to unfinished work from 2019 that was completed in 2020.
Of the 12 capital projects planned to be tendered in 2020, 4 have been tendered and
award reports brought forward to Council, and 3 with closed tenders and award reports
to come to Council in July. The Grey Road 19 Pulverize and Pave Rehabilitation and
Structure 124-145: Singhampton Bridge are Simcoe led projects that have also been
awarded. Structure 009-900 Grey Road 9 Lot 13, Conc XIII/XIV, Normanby, Structure 900-272:
Orchardville Bridge Removal, and the Grey Road 15 Retaining Wall & Hydro Moves: 28th St
(15033) have been deferred to 2021.
Staff is proposing to help fund corporate deficits related to COVID-19, by providing
surplus funds related to projects tendered to date, and by requesting Council’s approval
to use surplus and additional unbudgeted Federal Gas Tax funds to help fund capital
projects in 2020.
With Council’s approval of the use of additional Federal Gas Tax Funds, and the savings
of awarded project costs to date, the Transportation Services Department could provide
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up to approximately $2,300,000 in capital budget funding to assist with corporate deficits
related to COVID-19 expenditures.
Based on projections contained in this report, and after the use of any projected
surpluses or designated reserves, the funding required to offset those budget deficits
related to COVID-19 is projected to equal $1,545,600.
For this report presentation, the Transportation Services capital budget is being
projected with a year-end capital surplus of $817,700 based on tendered projects that
have been completed to date. This surplus is helping to offset estimated COVIDd-19
deficits that are being projected from other departmental budgets in this report.
If additional funding assistance is provided by upper levels of government, these surplus
funds could be returned to Transportation Services reserves for future capital work or a
reduction in the use Federal Gas Tax Reserve funding in 2020.
 Paramedic Services: This service is projected to end the year with a shortfall in the
operating budget and a balanced capital budget. The amount of the operating budget
shortfall is dependent on the 2020 annual funding announcement, the amount of
funding received to assist with the impact of COVID-19 and the duration of the
pandemic. The 2020 budget includes an annual funding increase of $67,000; as of May
26, Ministry staff advised there was no time frame available as to when the 2020
funding announcement would be made. Staff began tracking costs associated with
COVID-19 in March and as of April 30, these costs totaled $214,411. The Ministry
requested cost estimates in late April and based upon best estimates at that time the
cost to year-end could be as a worse case scenario $985,000. The Ministry has
requested an updated projection from all services prior to releasing a funding
announcement; staff is reviewing costs and assumptions to submit this information.
Call volume has decreased during the pandemic and as a result, savings are being seen
in the budget lines for meal allowance and fuel. Other savings will exist in lines for staff
training, travel and meals. Offsetting these savings are higher expenses for medical
supplies, medications and laundry. Based upon data to April 30, budgeted hours for lost
time (sick, modified, costs not covered by the WSIB budget) are currently within budget
however it is still early in the year. Staff will continue to monitor throughout the year as
this is a point in time comparison.
Staff is hopeful that savings and shortfalls in budgeted operating lines will be sufficient to
year-end with the caveat that this projection assumes the province will provide at least
$67,000 in an annual funding increase and cover the costs associated with COVID-19.
The estimated $985,000 shortfall associated with COVID-19 will be mitigated by
provincial funding however the amount of that funding is unknown at this time.
The capital budget includes the purchase of two ambulances, the internally financed
debenture cost for the Chatsworth station and a transfer to reserve for future building
maintenance. Except for the debenture payment and transfer to reserve, vehicle
purchases are funded from reserve and proceeds from the sale of used equipment; as a
result, the capital budget will not have a surplus at year-end.
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Legal and Legislated Requirements
None

Financial and Resource Implications
A review of the actual as compared to budget, as at the end of April for all County departments, projects
a corporate year-end deficit position of $1,098,600. This negative variance would represent a 0.70%
variance as compared to the 2020 budgeted gross expenditures of $157,467,400.
This negative variance does not incorporate the use of additional Federal Gas Tax Reserve Funds, and
the use of any Federal Gas Tax Reserve savings that have been realized based on the awarded
Transportation Services projects to date. With Council’s approval, the use of additional Federal Gas Tax
Funds in 2020, an additional $1,545,600 in funding could be provided, along with the $814,400 in other
departmental surplus funds that have been estimated to offset those projected departmental budget
deficits related to COVID-19.
Without the use of surplus and additional Federal Gas Tax Funds, a projected deficit of $1,098,600
would be anticipated.

Relevant Consultation
_x_

Internal – CAO, Directors, Managers and Finance staff

Appendices and Attachments
Attachment to FR-CW-17-20 2020 Operating and Capital Budget Variance Analysis as of April 30, 2020
Attachment to FR-CW-17-20 2020 Financial Summary Statements as of April 30, 2020

FR-CW-17-20

107

June 25, 2020

Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

EDTC-CW-11-20

Title:

Economic Recovery Plan

Prepared by:

Savanna Myers, Director of Economic Development,
Tourism & Culture
Steve Furness, Manager of Economic Development

Reviewed by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Lower Tier(s) Affected: All
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report EDTC-CW-11-20 regarding Economic Recovery Plan be
received; and

2.

That staff be directed to implement the Economic Recovery Plan
through the Grey County Economic Development Working Group; and

3.

That staff be authorized to proceed with the Plan prior to Council
approval as per Section 25.6 of Procedural By-law 5003-18.

Executive Summary
The Grey County Economic Development & Tourism Working Group has been
coordinating efforts since March 17 with regards to Covid-19 related resources and
communications. Several actions have been taken to assist our business communities
throughout the stages of this pandemic. The Working Group turned it’s focus to
recovery on April 24 and began taking immediate actions, while developing a staged
plan to accomplish three key outcomes: share facts, build confidence and support
business.
With the support of Council on May 28th, staff worked with the Finance Department to
propose a refocus to approved 2020 economic development and tourism budgets.
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Background and Discussion
The Federal and Provincial governments have been quick to act in the wake of Covid19 to support business through access to emergency loans, wage subsidies and
individual benefits, in addition to interest and penalty relief, energy savings and tax
credits.
Locally, Grey County and its member municipalities have provided information and
resources to business, developed the Community & Business Resiliency Map,
completed surveys, provided results and comment to upper levels of government,
hosted webinars and introduced fee and penalty deferrals to improve cash flow.
Through survey responses, consultations and stakeholder engagement, we understand
that most businesses were able to achieve liquidity through federal, provincial and
municipal supports. What is most needed today are facts, confidence and support to
move forward towards profit once again.
Less than one year ago, staff were working hard to change the narrative around job
creation, with an unemployment rate hovering around a two percent, our region did not
have the people needed to fill the jobs available. Today, we work to save jobs and save
business.
Economic Recovery Plan
Through the Economic Development & Tourism Working Group, staff have developed a
draft phase one recovery plan to assist in regional recovery. Given the continued
uncertainty and quickly changing environment, the recovery plan should be read as a
high level guidebook, which will remain flexible to allow for quick action pivots to apply
resources where they have the greatest impact.
Underlying the entire plan is the need to enable our local entrepreneurs through facts,
confidence and support. The fundamentals of this plan mean staff are turning our focus
inward to begin, focusing almost entirely on our own people: entrepreneurs and
residents.
Goal: To assist local businesses and the community recover from the initial economic
impacts of the pandemic and support sustainable economic development.





Businesses feel confident in reopening their businesses and that they are
supported by their employees and customers;
Local businesses have the resources and ability to take advantage of ecommerce opportunities;
Businesses have access and understand government support programs for
themselves, their business and employees.
Business owners are optimistic that the local economy will recover.
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Key Action Items:
To date, the Plan includes 27 action items in addition to data tracking. The following
items were actioned immediately:









All-Sector Business Impact Surveys: April, May
Business Resource Page
Business Toolkit Resources
Community & Business Resiliency Map
Access to PPE – Local Vendor Form for inclusion on Resiliency Map
Small Business Transition Program (Starter Company Plus)
Ask a Professional Series
Regional Retention - Grey Bruce Class of 2020

The following action items will be actioned immediately:







SHOPHere Program
Ontario Live
Business Toolkit
Marketing Communications – Industry & Consumer
o Information blasts to business and community partners
o Buy local campaign (with Grey Bruce Huron Strong)
o Capacity campaign – promoting trails and outdoor space
Infrastructure Development & Destination Protocols (Downtown toolkit)

As per the plan, many of the items in the plan require staff time as the resource. There
are several free programs and opportunities to be leveraged through partnerships.
There are also several items that will require a budget.
Though these actions are new as a result of the pandemic, the root of this work is well
aligned to our usual practice of providing support to industry and consumers. As such,
these types of line items were already included in the approved 2020 economic
development and tourism budgets, it is the focus and message that have shifted to
specifically deal with economic recovery amid the pandemic.
Budget Re-Focus
Following a review with the Finance Department, economic development and tourism
staff have identified a combined $135,000 available to refocus on Covid-19 recovery.
Through the approved 2020 budget, these funds were allocated to marketing,
communications, stakeholder engagement, travel and training. The recovery refocus will
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see this budget refocused to specific pandemic recovery related marketing,
communications and business support.
At the same time, The Business Enterprise Centre has received endorsement from the
Province to amend the Starter Company Plus Program to assist small business with
transitions through the pandemic. This approval allows staff to refocus the $58,000
grant fund in small increments (up to $2500) for entrepreneurs, while also enhancing
meaningful training opportunities with professional services (ie. Human Resources,
Legal, Accounting, Public Health etc).
Through the approved 2019 and 2020 budgets, each member municipality currently has
$40,000 for implementation of their CIPs. Several incentives within the CIP could be
focused for recovery to help businesses, downtowns and public spaces transition to
meet new pandemic standards; including:






Buildings and Land Improvement Grant
Startup Space Leasehold Improvement Grant
Vacant Building Conversion/Expansion Grant
Façade, Signage & Property Improvement Grant
Destination Infrastructure Grant

Future Forward
Looking ahead, the renovations for the Sydenham Campus are now complete and the
original intent of the Campus is poised to become even more relevant in the postpandemic environment.
The Business Enterprise Center and the Catapult Grey Bruce both support small
business recovery and transition, and are critically important today to assist business
transition through this crisis. Catapult will be able to provide a level of service we don’t
currently have locally, particularly through private sector mentors who are able to
provide advice and guidance to business where staff cannot.
The IT infrastructure has also been upgraded throughout the Innovation Wing and could
provide connectivity for business and members of the public. In line with recent Council
conversations, access to reliable and affordable broadband is critical.
With an unemployment rate moving from two to eight percent in only a few months, new
training opportunities and programs will be critical. We are well connected to community
training groups and can be mobilized quickly when the economy opens up. For example
the Tenneco Employee Action Center will be operating from the Sydenham Campus,
and other groups are likely to come forward with training and skill enhancement
programs.
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The re-opening of the Campus will be aligned with County return to work planning and
will follow the guidance of public health.
With the endorsement of Council, staff will begin immediately actioning items outlined in
the economic recovery plan. While implementation is happening, the working group will
be thinking ahead to consider what future phases of recovery look like. We anticipate
recovery will span 2021 and therefore any further consideration of programs and
initiatives will be included in budget deliberations.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
There are no legal or legislated requirements relating to this report.

Financial and Resource Implications
The proposed budget associated with the Economic Recovery Plan has been refocused
from approved 2020 economic development and tourism budgets and will not require
further levy. With this re-direct, it is expected that the economic development and
tourism budgets will end the year on budget, despite absorbing a significant deficit from
Sydenham Campus, which was accounted for prior to identification of funds.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal – Economic Development and Tourism staff, Director of Corporate
Services, Deputy Treasurer, Financial Analyst

☐

External – Economic Development Working Group, Grey Bruce Public Health,
Catapult Grey Bruce

Appendices and Attachments
Economic Recovery Plan
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

CAOR-CW-11-20

Title:

SWIFT 2.0

Prepared by:

Kim Wingrove, CAO

Reviewed by:
Lower Tier(s) Affected:
Status:

Recommendation
1. That Report CAOR-CW-11-20 SWIFT 2.0 be received; and
2. That the County of Grey submit letters requesting broadband funding for
Southwestern Ontario to the Canadian Radio and Telecommunications
Commission’s Broadband Fund and Industry Science and Economic
Development’s Universal Broadband Fund.

Executive Summary
This report is to present the details of the special meeting of the Western Ontario
Wardens’ Caucus called on Thursday, June 4, 2020. Recommendations supported at
that meeting include approval of a SWIFT 2.0 model and for advocacy in support of
receiving SWIFT 2.0 funding, funding to complete the remaining SWIFT 1.0 projects, as
well as southwestern Ontario’s population based proportionate share of the CRTC’s
$750M Broadband Fund and Industry, Science and Economic Development’s $1.7B
Universal Broadband Fund.

Background and Discussion
Funding from both the Province of Ontario and the Government of Canada is urgently
needed to address our region’s large connectivity gaps, so that we can close the digital
divide. The Western Ontario Wardens’ Caucus supports the funding of SWIFT as
Southwestern Ontario’s mechanism to advance the expansion of critical broadband
infrastructure across the region. The model works, it delivers results and can be
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immediately leveraged to upgrade networks and coverage in our region’s underserved
areas. COVID -19 has underscored the urgency to address gaps in broadband services
across our region.
At its meeting held on Thursday, June 4, 2020, the Western Ontario Wardens’ Caucus
reviewed a set of recommendations for the future of the WOWC’s investments in highspeed, fibre internet access. David Mayberry, Chair, SWIFT Board of Directors and
Barry Field, Executive Director, SWIFT provided an update on the current SWIFT
program and presented recommendations on how SWIFT 2.0 should be structured and
funded. Accompanying this report is the presentation that was provided to the members
of the WOWC.
The attached minutes detail the meeting, including the six recommendations that were
approved. A summary is below.
SWIFT 2.0
The Caucus was presented with five options to consider regarding future investment in
fibre internet infrastructure. Option 1 was not to consider pursuing broadband funding
and drop this from the Caucus mandate. Options 2, 3 and 4 included each municipality
pursuing funding individually, pursuing funding as a group and then executing individual
projects or designing projects and procuring an ISP to build.
SWIFT 2.0 sees WOWC pursuing funding and executing $500M worth of projects under
the SWIFT model. The focus would be on fibre installation rather than wireless, and a
target of unserved areas to serve at a maximum of medium density areas or about 15
premises/km. The average density of unserved premises in Grey is 5.4/km. The federal
and provincial governments would be requested to provide $367M with the
municipalities responsible for $50M in project spend and $10M in project administration.
SWIFT 2.0 would increase the subsidy available to ISPs to complete construction to
83% from the current 67% of project costs. The ISPs would contribute about $83M in
project funding under the proposed model. Grey County’s share of project costs and
admin fees would total $4,257,565 to install 549 km of fibre for a total project spend of
$36,228,263.
Beyond the request for $500M in SWIFT 2.0 funding, WOWC will request $44M to
complete the remaining unfunded SWIFT 1.0 projects. This would include $5,873,841
worth of work in Grey County.
CRTC and ISED Program Requests
In addition to the decision to support SWIFT 2.0, the WOWC have a plan to advocate
for our region’s fair share of CRTCs $750M Broadband Fund. WOWC and our Member

CAOR-CW-11-20

114

June 25, 2020

Counties and local municipalities should be advocating for 10% (or $75M) of the funding
as the region represents 10% of the population of Canada. WOWC must also advocate
for the region’s fair share of Innovation, Science and Economic Development (ISED)
$1.7B Universal Broadband Fund. Applications are opening this year and WOWC
should once again be advocating for 10% (or $170M) for Southwestern Ontario based
on population.
This advocacy is above and beyond SWIFT funding requests. Southwestern Ontario
was left out of the last round of Connect to Innovate (CTI) funding. In order to ensure
that the region and its fifteen Member Counties and local municipalities receive their fair
share of available new funding, members are requested to support advocacy efforts by
sending the letters attached to this report, one to the CEO of CRTC and the other to the
Hon. Navdeep Bains, Minister of Innovation, Science and Industry.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
None with this report.

Financial and Resource Implications
None with this report. Should WOWC and SWIFT be successful in securing funding for
new broadband investments, staff would bring forward a report with details to enable
Grey County Council to consider the scope of their participation in new projects.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal (list)

☒

External: Barry Field, SWIFT, Western Ontario Wardens Caucus

Appendices and Attachments
Attachment 1: Draft mins - WOWC (Electronic) - June 4, 2020
Attachment 2: SWIFT 2.0 Presentation June 4 2020
Attachment 3: CRTC Letter
Attachment 4: ISED Letter
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Committee Report
To:

Warden McQueen and Members of Grey County Council

Committee Date:

June 25, 2020

Subject / Report No:

Update on Home Farm Appeals / PDR-CW-30-20

Title:

Home Farm 42T-2015-03 Subdivision Report

Prepared by:

Scott Taylor

Reviewed by:

Randy Scherzer

Lower Tier(s) Affected: Town of The Blue Mountains
Status:

Recommendation
1.

That Report PDR-CW-30-20 be received;

2.

That all written submissions received on plan of subdivision 42T-201503 known as Home Farm were considered; the effect of which helped to
make an informed recommendation;

3.

That in consideration of the draft plan of subdivision application 42T2015-03, for lands described as Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot
20, Concession 2, and Part of Helen Street ROW, RP 555, in the
geographic Township of Collingwood, now in the Town of The Blue
Mountains, the Grey County Committee of the Whole supports this plan
of subdivision to create a total of two-hundred and fifteen (215)
residential units, subject to the conditions set out in the attached draft
plan conditions, or with minor revisions thereto; and

4.

That staff be directed to work with the Town of The Blue Mountains and
the proponent to explore settlement options for Local Planning Appeal
Tribunal file PL180356.

Executive Summary
The County has received a plan of subdivision application (County file number 42T2015-03) known as Home Farm, to facilitate the construction of 215 residential units.
Associated official plan and zoning by-law amendment applications were also received
by the Town of The Blue Mountains. These three applications were received in 2015
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and subsequently appealed in 2018 based on non-decisions by the County and Town. A
Local Planning Appeal Tribunal hearing has been scheduled for July 20, 2020. County
and Town staff have been working with the proponent towards a settlement on these
appeals. County staff are of the opinion that the attached draft plan conditions, subject
to minor revisions if necessary, represent the basis for a settlement for Local Planning
Appeal Tribunal file PL180356. Should a settlement not be reached, it appears the
issues for discussion at the hearing have been scoped significantly.

Background and Discussion
In 2015 the County received a plan of subdivision application known as the Home Farm
development to create a total of 277 residential units. Associated official plan and
zoning by-law amendment applications were also submitted to the Town of The Blue
Mountains at that same time. This proposed development was to occur on three parcels
of land, two of which were owned by the proponent, and one of which was owned by the
Town of The Blue Mountains. Map 1 below shows the subject lands in blue, the Town
owned lands in red, and labels some neighbouring developments. The applications
were deemed complete, but a decision was not rendered on the files before appeals
were received on March 28, 2018. Simultaneous with the appeals, the proponent also
amended their proposal to a total of 215 residential units (shown on Map 2 below) and
removed the Town-owned lands from their subdivision.

Map 1: Airphoto of Subject Lands
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Map 2: Proposed Revised Plan of Subdivision dated June 11, 2020
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The subject lands are approximately 55 hectares in size and are legally described as
Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2, and Part of Helen Street
ROW, RP 555, in the geographic Township of Collingwood, now in the Town of The
Blue Mountains. These lands contain varied topography and vegetation including
highlands and lowlands above and below the Nipissing Ridge. Large portions of the
subject lands are not proposed for development and will remain in a natural state as
open space. A portion of the site is a significant archeological site, referred to as PlaterMartin.
The proposed development is located in Craigleith, south of Highway 26 and east of
Grey Road 19. Aside from the Town-owned lands, abutting the proposed development
is the future Eden Oak and Parkbridge developments. Surrounding the rest of the lands
are a mixture of residential and commercial resort properties, with some additional
undeveloped land to the east.
The proposed subdivision would have access off Grey Road 19 and Helen Street, as
well as a series of new internal roads, which will be a mixture of condominium and
public roads (Streets A and B). A future road connection, Street A, is being left to the
Town-owned lands. A temporary turning circle is required at the north end of Street A
(Block 236), until such time as it is further extended into the Town-owned lands in the
future. Servicing to the development will be via municipal water and sewer services.
In addition to residential development on-site, the proposed subdivision also contains
parking, open space, trails, parkland, stormwater management, and the Plater-Martin
site. It should also be noted that there are additional future development blocks that will
connect to the future Eden Oak development, and to Birch View Trail to the south.
These future development blocks form a part of the subject lands but are unlikely to
connect to any of the new streets in the proposed Home Farm development due to the
topography of the Nipissing Ridge.
Prior to the submission of the initial plan of subdivision application the proponent had a
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Town to preserve the Plater-Martin site.
The signed MOU was described in Town staff report PDS.17.104 as follows;
“for an approximate cash contribution of $378,300 and the Plater-Martin site to
be given to the Town and preserved as parkland, in exchange for former
Bluewater District school lands, a surplus parcel of Town-owned lands and a
portion of the Helen Street road allowance which could be developed as part of
the subdivision.
A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was signed between the Town and
MacPherson Builders in November 2014, which sets out the land exchange.”
This MOU is no longer in place, and as noted above the proposed subdivision no longer
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contains the Town-owned lands.
The remainder of this report will address the 215-unit revised proposal currently before
the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (LPAT). A 10-day LPAT hearing has been
scheduled for July 20, 2020 for the plan of subdivision, official plan amendment, and
zoning by-law amendment.
The subject lands are designated as ‘Recreational Resort Area’ in the County Official
Plan, ‘Residential Recreational Area’ and ‘Hazard’ in the Town of The Blue Mountains
Official Plan, and ‘Escarpment Recreation Area’ in the Niagara Escarpment Plan. Each
of these plans recognizes residential development potential on the subject lands.
Copies of all background reports and plans can be found at this link.
The below planning analysis represents the County staff position and recommendation
only.

Public and Agency Comments Received
A statutory public meeting was never held for the proposed development. That said,
two public open houses were held, one prior to the appeals, and one following the
appeals showing the revised 215-unit proposal.
The following people made comments on the development prior to the appeals.








Donald Avery,
Danny Brackett,
Rob Dubien,
Stan Holba,
Shayne Mintz,
Fionna K. Orr, and
Peter Tollefsen.

The comments received in writing have been summarized into the table below along
with a response on how those comments have been considered and addressed. Please
note the above comments were received prior to amending the applications to the 215unit proposal.
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Public Comments
Raised
Requests notice of any
decisions rendered
Traffic concerns

Impact on the
environment

How comments have been considered / addressed?
All residents that requested notice have had their
addresses forwarded onto LPAT as part of the appeal
package for their notification lists.
The proposed development submitted a Traffic Impact
Study, which has been reviewed by the Town and the
County. The proposal has also been reduced in size from
277 units to 215 units. Subject to the draft conditions
attached to this report, County staff have no further
concerns from a traffic perspective.
The proposed development submitted an Environmental
Impact Study (EIS) and a series of addendums. These
addendum reports were meant to address the County and
Town’s environmental peer review by WSP. Dan Reeves
of WSP has since signed off on the development, subject
to the draft plan conditions. Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority and Niagara Escarpment Commission staff have
since also signed off, subject to the draft conditions
attached.
To be addressed throughout the remainder of this report.

Conformity to planning
documents
Proximity of the
This concern was primarily in relation to two properties on
development to existing Grey Road 19, which abutted the Town-owned lands. As
homes on Grey Road 19 noted above, the Town-owned lands are no longer a part
of this development. A lot addition has also recently
expanded these two lots such that they have an additional
buffer between the existing dwellings and the Townowned lands.
Concerns over the MOU There is no longer a MOU for the Town-owned lands and
between the Town and
furthermore the MOU is not a matter being considered by
the proponent
the LPAT.
As part of the LPAT process the following people were included as participants:











Lucy Richmond,
Danny Brackett,
Alexander Faltynek,
Dale Cook,
Stephen Jefferson Holba,
Annie Pilon,
Terry Bunting,
Sam Macri,
Eleanor Ward,
John Cameron,
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Richard V. Havlicek, and
Hana Havlicek.

As per the procedural order;
“A participant must provide to the Tribunal and the parties a participant statement
on or before May 21, 2020, or the witness or participant shall not be permitted to
give oral evidence at the hearing.”
No participant statements have been received by any of the above participants prior to
the May 21st deadline. The County has no further written record of the concerns of the
above participants.
At the time of the procedural order, the parties to the hearing were;






MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited,
Town of The Blue Mountains,
County of Grey,
Eden Oak (Trailshead) Inc., and
Pamela Spence and Moira McIntyre.

Of the five parties listed above, only MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited,
Town of The Blue Mountains and County of Grey remain as parties.
Prior to the appeals, the County received written submissions from the following groups
or agencies.














April 24, 2015 – Julie Dahl, Fisheries and Oceans Canada
August 26, 2015 – George Govier, Historic Saugeen Metis
September 3, 2015 and October 30, 2015 – Joseph Muller, Ministry of Tourism,
Culture and Sport
September 5, 2015 – Tony Dominguez, Rogers Communications Inc.
August 25, 2015 – Kevin McClure, Ministry of Municipal Affairs
November 2, 2015 – Kim Benner, Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
March 13, 2014 – Louis Lesage, Nation Huronne Wendat
September 3, 2015 – Mary Jane Patrick, Union Gas Limited
September 2, 2015 and February 8, 2016 – Andrew Sorensen, Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority
August 27, 2015 – Dennis De Rango, Hydro One
December 1, 2015 – Chief Greg Nadjiwon and Chief Vern Roote, Saugeen
Ojibway Nation
February 20, 2015 – Janith K. English, The Wyandat Nation of Kansas
August 10, 2015 – Judy Rhodes-Munk, Niagara Escarpment Commission
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Various dates throughout the application process – Grey County Transportation
Services Department
Various Dates throughout the application process – Town of The Blue
Mountains
Various dates throughout the application process – Dan Reeves, WSP Canada
Inc. (environmental peer review on behalf of the County of Grey and Town of
The Blue Mountains)

Many of the above agency and stakeholder comments were related to the following
issues, with a staff response included for each.
1. The Natural Environment – as noted above the County and Town peer reviewer,
the GSCA, and the NEC have since signed off on the environmental components
of this development, subject to the attached draft plan conditions.
2. The Plater-Martin lands – Archaeological studies were completed in support of
this development. Significant First Nations outreach has also been completed
with First Nations across Canada and the United States. The Saugeen Ojibway
Nation (SON) has requested a conservation easement for the Plater-Martin lands
as part of their December 1st, 2015 letter. The SON has further requested the
ability to be present on-site during land clearance of the development blocks to
monitor for any conditions consistent with burial features. The December 2015
SON letter was written at a time when it was believed that the Plater-Martin site
was to be transferred to the Town based on the former MOU.
It should be noted that the former 2004 Town Official Plan spoke to the creation
of the Craigleith Heritage Park on these lands. However, the SON approach to
the preservation of archaeological resources and sites is summarized in Town
Staff report PDS.17.104 as follows;
“one of ‘non-disturbance’ and ‘non-attention’, and as such, they [SON]
discourage any signage or other attention brought to their sites and will
not support any actions that vary from this approach. The position of SON
brings the creation of the Craigleith Heritage Park into question and
certainly does not support the creation of an interpretative centre. It should
also be noted that the 2016 Official Plan places much less emphasis on
the creation of the Craigleith Heritage Park and reinforces the passive
approach to heritage site preservation.”
Protection of the Plater-Martin site is required, and the proposed residential
development will not be located on the protected lands. The protection of the
Plater-Martin lands through zoning is covered by draft plan condition # 30.
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Further conditions are also included for the long-term protection of the PlaterMartin lands, and land clearance on the surrounding lands (covered by draft plan
conditions #39 and 40 respectively). Draft plan conditions #39 and 40 provide the
SON input into long-term protection, and to ensure site clearance of the
development lands is done in a safe manner with respect to the surrounding
archaeological heritage.
3. Standard Utility Provider Comments – these comments are generally standard to
any plan of subdivision and have been addressed through recommended draft
plan conditions.
4. Planning Policy Conformity and Consistency – See Analysis of Planning Issues
section of this report.
As per the requirements of the procedural order, the three remaining parties also signed
statements of agreed upon facts for the fields of land use planning and engineering.
Copies of the statements of agreed upon facts can be found below:



Planning Statement
Engineering Statement

County Transportation Services engineers were not required to sign the engineering
statement of agreed upon facts, as the County had not listed Transportation Services in
our witness list. With respect to issue # 21 in the engineering statement, County
Transportation Services have since confirmed that their comments can be addressed
through the recommended draft plan conditions attached to this report.

Analysis of Planning Issues
When rendering a land use planning decision, planning authorities must have regard to
matters of Provincial Interest under the Planning Act, be consistent with the Provincial
Policy Statement (PPS) 2020, and conform to any Provincial Plans or Municipal Official
Plans that govern the subject lands. The Niagara Escarpment Plan (NEP) is in effect for
this part of the Town. In this case, the County of Grey Official Plan and the Town of The
Blue Mountains Official Plan also have jurisdiction over the subject property.
It is worth noting that since the planning applications were originally submitted in 2015,
the following legislative and policy changes have occurred.




Planning Act – numerous amendments,
Provincial Policy Statement – the 2005 PPS has been replaced by the 2020 PPS,
County Official Plan – the 2012 Official Plan has been replaced by the 2019
Official Plan,
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Town of The Blue Mountains Official Plan – the 2004 Official Plan has been
replaced by the 2016 Official Plan,
Town of The Blue Mountains Zoning By-law – the former 1983 Township of
Collingwood Zoning By-law has been replaced by the 2018 Town of The Blue
Mountains Zoning By-law.

For the purposes of this review, staff have utilized the most recent versions of each of
the above-noted policy and legislative documents. The one caveat to the above
comments is to note that the official plan amendment application was submitted under
the 2004 Town Official Plan and its purpose was twofold:
1. to re-designate the Town-owned lands from the ‘Institutional’ designation, to a
designation that permits residential plans of subdivision, and
2. to address the residential density and bonusing provisions in accordance with the
2004 Town Official Plan policies.
In the opinion of County staff, this official plan amendment is no longer necessary for its
original purposes based on; (a) the Town-owned lands no longer being considered as
part of this development, and (b) the permitted densities in the 2016 Town Plan are
supportive of the density being proposed by the 215 unit proposal. The proponent has
not withdrawn this official plan amendment request, based on not having had sign-off
that the development conforms to the 2016 Town Official Plan. In general, County staff
defer to the planning opinions of Town of The Blue Mountains staff, as it pertains to
conformity to the Town Official Plan.

Provincial Policy and Legislation
Both the Planning Act and the PPS speak to the efficient use of land within settlement
areas, where services are readily available. The proposed plan of subdivision is within
a settlement area that is serviced by municipal water and sewer services. The PPS
indicates that the preferred form of servicing for settlement areas is full municipal
services. Municipal water and wastewater treatment capacity is currently available for
the proposed units.
The supply of an adequate range of residential housing types is required in both
Provincial documents. In this case, the proposed plan of subdivision is providing a
range of unit types including single-detached dwellings and townhomes.
The protection of significant environmental features is also required through the
legislation and policy. An Environmental Impact Study and Addendum reports were
submitted in support of the proposed development. These findings have been supported
by the Town and County peer reviewer, and the findings incorporated into the
recommended draft plan conditions.
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Development outside of hazardous areas is also a requirement of provincial policy and
legislation. Through the channelization of the watercourse, the current hazard lands onsite are being refined. It is further worth noting that the developers of Parkbridge, Eden
Oak, and Home Farm have all been collaborating with the Town to address regional
stormwater management for all three development sites. The recommendations of this
regional approach are being incorporated into each of their development approvals
(should they be granted). Grey Sauble Conservation Authority (GSCA) have also
reviewed the reports and recommended conditions of draft approval which have been
incorporated into the recommended conditions.
The policy and legislation also speak to the protection of significant archaeological
features. As noted earlier in this report the Plater-Martin lands will be protected via
zoning, further First Nations consultation, and on-site screening during land clearance of
the nearby development lands.
Section 51(24) of the Planning Act also provides criteria that must be considered when
assessing any new plan of subdivision. These criteria (in italics), along with County
staff analysis are as follows:
(a) the effect of development of the proposed subdivision on matters of provincial
interest as referred to in section 2;
The matters of provincial interest have been analyzed earlier on in this section.
(b) whether the proposed subdivision is premature or in the public interest;
Services can be provided to this subdivision and the proposed residential units. The
lands have also been designated for growth in both the County and Town Official
Plans. Furthermore, there is a demand for additional residential units in the Town.
As such, the proposed plan of subdivision is in the public interest and would not be
premature.
(c) whether the plan conforms to the official plan and adjacent plans of subdivision, if
any;
The proposed development will connect to Grey Road 19 and Helen Street as part of
the 215 residential units being proposed at this time. A future road connection is
also being left to the abutting Town-owned lands. Future development may also
connect to Eden Oak in the northeast, and Birch View Trail in the southeast, but
these blocks are not being contemplated for development at this time.
(d) the suitability of the land for the purposes for which it is to be subdivided;
(d.1) if any affordable housing units are being proposed, the suitability of the
proposed units for affordable housing;
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Based on the background reports and technical studies, the subject lands appear
suitable for residential development. It is not known if any of the proposed units will
be ‘affordable’.
(e) the number, width, location and proposed grades and elevations of highways,
and the adequacy of them, and the highways linking the highways in the
proposed subdivision with the established highway system in the vicinity and the
adequacy of them;
This item has been reviewed by the proponent, Town staff and County staff. As
noted earlier in the report, the northern portion of Street ‘A’ will require a temporary
turning circle, Block 236, which is also covered by draft plan condition #19. Similarly,
Town staff and proponent have also determined where Helen Street will transition
from being a public road to a condominium road. A turning circle has been added at
Block 229 for the Helen Street turnaround (see draft plan condition # 18).
Easements for access will be provided to the Town and the public over the
condominium roads, as covered by draft plan condition # 14. Draft plan conditions
are included to address the remainder of the road issues, including capturing the
comments of the County Transportation Services department.
(f) the dimensions and shapes of the proposed lots;
Based on topography and the natural features on-site, there are some abnormally
shaped lots and blocks in this development. However, through the technical review,
and the recommended draft conditions, staff are satisfied that the lands can be
appropriately developed as proposed.
(g) the restrictions or proposed restrictions, if any, on the land proposed to be
subdivided or the buildings and structures proposed to be erected on it and the
restrictions, if any, on adjoining land;
County staff are not aware of any restrictions or proposed restrictions on the subject
lands that would prevent the proposed development. The proposed development
will be subject to a subdivision agreement, as is standard for such developments.
(h) conservation of natural resources and flood control;
GSCA staff have provided recommended conditions of draft plan approval, and a
regional stormwater approach has been utilized to address flood control on the
subject lands. Through the associated zoning amendment and channelization of the
watercourse, the hazard boundaries are being slightly redefined as part of this
development.
(i) the adequacy of utilities and municipal services;
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The proposed lands will be adequately serviced by municipal water and sewer
services.
(j) the adequacy of school sites;
The two school boards were circulated on this application and did not raise any
concerns.
(k) the area of land, if any, within the proposed subdivision that, exclusive of
highways, is to be conveyed or dedicated for public purposes;
Various blocks are being dedicated to the Town for parks (blocks 227, 232, and
242). Parkland dedication is covered through recommended draft conditions # 22
and 23. Additional lands are also being considered for a trails network, covered
through draft conditions # 24 – 26. There are also provisions in the Town Official
Plan which speak to 40% open space and the protection of the Nipissing Ridge,
which have been considered through conditions #27 – 29.
As noted earlier, the Plater-Martin lands are proposed to be protected, with further
First Nations consultation being required, but not necessarily conveyed or dedicated.
(l) the extent to which the plan’s design optimizes the available supply, means of
supplying, efficient use and conservation of energy; and
The proposed development lands will connect to the existing road network and
services in an efficient manner. Large portions of the site are maintained in a natural
state which limits the overall efficiency, but these lands are worthy of protection for
natural environment purposes.
(m)the interrelationship between the design of the proposed plan of subdivision and
site plan control matters relating to any development on the land, if the land is
also located within a site plan control area designated under subsection 41 (2) of
this Act or subsection 114 (2) of the City of Toronto Act, 2006.
The proposed development will be subject to a future plan of condominium and site
plan control (for the multi-unit blocks), which are reflected in the recommended
conditions of draft plan approval.
The proposed plan of subdivision application, with the attached conditions of draft
approval, would have regard for matters of Provincial Interest and the criteria of section
51(24) of the Planning Act and be consistent with the PPS 2020.

Niagara Escarpment Plan
The proposed development has been reviewed against the 2017 Niagara Escarpment
Plan (NEP). The subject lands are designated as ‘Escarpment Recreation Area’ in the
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NEP. Similar to the settlement area designations in the Town and County Official
Plans, the Escarpment Recreation Area permits new residential development of this
nature. NEC staff have not raised any conformity issues with the proposed subdivision.
NEC staff have noted that the development can be supported subject to draft plan
conditions. County Staff are satisfied that the proposed development conforms to the
Niagara Escarpment Plan, with the recommended conditions of draft approval.

County Official Plan
The proposed plan of subdivision was submitted prior to the approval of Recolour Grey,
the County’s new Official Plan. County staff have reviewed the application against
Recolour Grey, as it stands as Council’s most recent statement of goals and objectives
for the County.
The proposed plan of subdivision is on lands designated as ‘Recreational Resort Area’
in the County Official Plan. Recreational Resort Areas are identified as a settlement
area and permit development of this nature. For development within this designation,
the County generally defers to the detailed development standards in the NEP and
Town Plan.
An Environmental Impact Study and Addendum Reports were submitted. The subject
lands are partially identified as ‘Significant Woodlands’ in the County Plan and have
mapped watercourses on-site. The County and Town’s environmental peer reviewer
has signed off on the proposed development subject to the recommended conditions of
draft approval which have been incorporated into the recommended conditions.
Appendix A to the County Plan also identifies a ‘dry hole petroleum well’ on-site. This
particular site appears to be outside of the development areas on-site adjacent to the
Plater-Martin site and Nipissing Ridge. Section 5.8.1(1) notes that these well locations
may not be accurate and that it is recommended that proponents refer to the Ontario
Oil, Gas, and Salt Resources Library for the most up to date information. This
information has been shared with the proponent who has noted no such well occurs onsite.
Section 4.5.1(2) of the County Plan speaks to the protection of archaeological resources
across the County. This section contains the following relevant references as they may
pertain to the Plater-Martin site.




“Local municipalities are encouraged to utilize zoning to prohibit any use of land
and the erecting, locating or using of any class or classes of buildings or
structures on land that is the site of a known significant archaeological resource
in accordance with Section 34(1)3.3 of the Planning Act.
Development and site alteration must not be permitted on lands containing
archaeological resources or areas of archaeological potential unless significant

PDR-CW-30-20

14

129

Date: June 25, 2020





archaeological resources have been conserved. Preservation of the
archaeological resources on site is the preferred method, but in some cases,
conservation can occur by removal and documentation. This will be done in
accordance with archaeological licensing provisions of the Ontario Heritage Act.
Where significant archaeological resources are preserved on site, conservation
may be secured through a heritage easement agreement, designation under the
Ontario Heritage Act, zoning provisions and/or other planning or heritage
conservation tools.
Where First Nations and Metis groups significant archaeological resources are
to be preserved on site, the proponent and the consultant archaeologist must
consult with the appropriate First Nation to identify approaches to commemorate
the site.”

County staff would note that there has been significant First Nations engagement on
this site, including First Nations from across North America. Staff would further note
that a combination of the first, third, and fourth bullets noted above may provide
appropriate protection mechanisms to protect the Plater-Martin lands. Recommended
draft plan condition # 30 speaks to appropriately zoning these lands. Conditions # 39
and 40 speak to the First Nations involvement in the long-term protection of PlaterMartin site and screening land clearance on the development blocks in the rest of the
subdivision. These two conditions stem from the 2015 request from the Saugeen
Ojibway Nation. County staff are supportive of conditions # 30, 39, and 40 for the
protection of the Plater-Martin lands.
Section 8.9 of the County Plan provides a similar servicing hierarchy and stormwater
management requirements to that found in the PPS, which has been noted above.
Elsewhere in Section 8.9 of the Plan, are policies which govern roads and
transportation. Helen Street is an existing intersection and the new Street ‘B’ (a public
street) would align with Birches Boulevard across Grey Road 19. It is worth noting that
the County’s Development Charges Background Study includes a future 4-laning of
Grey Road 19 in the location of this development. According to the Traffic Impact
Study, the road network is capable of supporting the new development in this location
(and that was based on an assessment of 277 units). Recommended draft plan
conditions 8, 9, 13 and 36 have been included to address the Transportation Services
comments. These conditions speak to;






stormwater management across the site, including along the County Road,
0.3 metre reserves to prevent direct access to Grey Road 19, except at
intersections,
the emergency access and appropriate signage,
construction routes, and
the exemption needed for the separation distance between intersections.
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The proposed plan of subdivision conforms to the County of Grey Official Plan, with the
recommended conditions of draft approval.

Town of The Blue Mountains Official Plan
The Town’s Official Plan contains many similar policies to that of the County Official
Plan. The Town’s Official Plan designates the subject lands as ‘Residential Recreation
Area’ (RRA) and ‘Hazard’ which contemplates development of this nature. As noted
earlier in this report, County staff will defer to Town staff with respect to determining
conformity with the Town Official Plan. County staff would note that Town staff have
helped develop the recommended draft plan conditions attached to this report, in order
to address the requirements of their planning documents.

Summary
County staff have worked with the proponent and Town staff on this subdivision and the
recommended conditions of draft plan approval.
Town staff and the proponent are also working to finalize the draft zoning by-law
amendment text and schedule to implement the proposed plan of subdivision. At this
stage it is not anticipated that the associated Town official plan amendment will be
needed.
With the attached recommended draft plan conditions, County staff are of the opinion
that the proposed development:
1.
2.
3.
4.

has regard for matters of Provincial interest under the Planning Act,
is consistent with the 2020 Provincial Policy Statement,
conforms to the 2017 Niagara Escarpment Plan, and
conforms to the 2019 County of Grey Official Plan.

County staff will defer to Town staff with respect to conformity with the Town of The
Blue Mountains Official Plan.

Legal and Legislated Requirements
The applications were processed in accordance with the Planning Act. Since being
appealed to the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal, the Tribunal is now the approval
authority for this development. County staff are following the requirements of the
amended procedural order as the July 20th hearing date approaches.

Financial and Resource Implications
The County has collected the requisite fee and peer review deposit for this application.
As per the County’s appeal protocol, because the County’s non-decision has been
PDR-CW-30-20

16

131

Date: June 25, 2020

appealed, the County has party status to this hearing. These files were appealed prior
to the County’s Director of Legal Services being hired, as such the County engaged
Erroll Treslan, from the Alliance Lawyers on this file. Erroll continues to be involved with
the Home Farm appeal.
County staff are hopeful that the three parties can reach minutes of settlement in
advance of the scheduled 10-day hearing on July 20th. These minutes of settlement
would need to be supported by the proponent, the Town, and the County. Should
minutes of settlement not be reached between the parties, it appears that the issues
have significantly scoped, and that the full 10-day timeslot will not be required. The
County will incur some legal expenses related to this file. Staff time has been required
to explore settlement options, and further staff time will be spent if a hearing is required.

Relevant Consultation
☐

Internal: Planning, Transportation Services, and Director of Legal Services

☐
External: Erroll Treslan – Alliance Lawyers, the Public, Town of The Blue
Mountains, Grey Sauble Conservation Authority, Niagara Escarpment Commission, and
other required agencies under the Planning Act.

Appendices and Attachments
PDR-PCD-32-15 Home Farm Information Report
Planning Statement of Agreed Upon Facts
Engineering Statement of Agreed Upon Facts
Recommended Conditions of Draft Plan Approval – attached
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Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

WITHOUT PREJUDICE – Draft Plan Conditions Revision Date June 22, 2020
Plan of Subdivision File No. 42T-2015-03 is hereby granted draft approval. The
conditions of final approval for registration of this draft plan of subdivision are as follows:

The conditions have been listed under the following general headings:
General Planning Requirements
Servicing, Grading and Road Requirements
Landscape, Fencing and Streetscape Requirements
Park and Open Space Requirements
Miscellaneous Requirements

General Planning Requirements
1. That this approval applies to the draft Plan of Subdivision File No. 42T-201503, as per drawing 1410-210-S prepared by Higgins Engineering Limited dated
April 3, 2020 and revised June 11, 2020 to provide for a maximum of 215
residential units, private open space uses, storm water management facilities,
public streets and private streets on the property legally described as lots 2, 3,
4, 5, 6 and 7, Registered Plan 555 and Part of Lot 20 Concession 2; Part of
Helen Street ROW, R.P. 555; Town of The Blue Mountains, County of Grey. In
addition to the foregoing, it is acknowledged that the Draft Plan of Subdivision
referenced above may be revised prior to Final Approval to show the proposed
townhome lots/buildings within Blocks on the Final Plan. These Blocks would
be further subdivided through Part Lot Control Exemption By-law(s), or
otherwise, as applicable.
2. A Subdivision Agreement shall be entered into and executed by the applicant,
and the Town of The Blue Mountains to satisfy all financial, legal, and
engineering matters, including the installation of municipal services,
landscaping and other requirements of the Town of The Blue Mountains and
the County of Grey including the payment of all applicable Town and County
development charges in accordance with their applicable Development
Charges By-law.
3. That prior to final approval by the County, that appropriate zoning is in effect for
this proposed subdivision that conforms to the County of Grey Official Plan and
the Town of The Blue Mountains Official Plan. The zoning shall address the
PDR-CW-30-20
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Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

development lands, as well as those lands not being developed at this time, in
addition to the Town’s open space provisions, protection of the Nipissing Ridge,
and the Plater Martin lands.
4. All new roads shall be named to the satisfaction of the Town of The Blue
Mountains in accordance with the Town’s Street Naming Policy.
5. That the Subdivision Agreement between the Owner and the Town of The Blue
Mountains be registered against the lands to which it applies, and that a copy
of the registered Subdivision Agreement be filed with the County of Grey.
6. If final approval is not given to this plan within five years of the draft approval
date, and no extensions have been granted, draft approval shall lapse under
Subsection 51(32) of the Planning Act, RSO 1990, as amended. If the owner
wishes to request an extension to draft approval, a written explanation together
with the applicable application fee and a resolution/letter of support from the
Town of The Blue Mountains must be submitted to the County of Grey, prior to
the lapsing date. Please note that an updated review of the Plan and revisions
to the conditions of approval may be necessary if an extension is to be granted.

Servicing, Grading and Road Requirements
7. That prior to final approval by the County, a Site Servicing Plan is prepared, and
the development is fully serviced with stormwater management, sanitary sewer
and water to the satisfaction of the Town of The Blue Mountains.
8. Prior to the initiation of any site grading or servicing and prior to the registration
of the plan, the Owner shall submit a Regional Stormwater Management
Report by a qualified consultant which describes the stormwater drainage
system for the proposed development on the subject and adjacent lands to the
satisfaction of the Town of The Blue Mountains, the Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority, and Grey County Transportation Services. This report be
incorporated into the Subdivision Agreement with the Town, and the Report
shall include:
a. A detailed engineering and drainage report which describes the stormwater
drainage system for the proposed development on the subject lands. The
report should include:
i) Plans illustrating how the drainage system will tie into the drainage of
surrounding properties;
PDR-CW-30-20

19

134

Date: June 25, 2020

Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

ii) The coordination of stormwater management recommendations on
the subject lands and adjacent lands;
iii) The technique to be utilized to ensure that all stormwater overland
flow routes shall be restricted within roads or approved outlets only;
iv) The stormwater management techniques required to accommodate
the 2 through 100, and Regional storm events;
v) How external flows will be accommodated and the design capacity of
the receiving system;
vi) Location and description of all outlets and other facilities which may
require permits; and
vii) Proposed methods for controlling or minimizing erosion and siltation
on-site and/or in downstream areas during and after construction.
It is recommended that the developer or his consultant contact the Town
Development Engineering Department, Grey Sauble Conservation
Authority, and County Transportation Services prior to preparing the above
report to clarify the specific requirements of this development.
b. Overall grading plans for the subject lands.
c. The Owner shall agree in the subdivision agreement, in wording acceptable
to the Town of The Blue Mountains:
i) To carry out, or cause to be carried out, all the works referred to in
condition 8(a) above;
ii) To obtain any necessary permits from the Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority (see Note #5); and
iii) Prior to the initiation of any grading or construction on the site, to
erect any silt fence as referred to in condition 8(a)(vii) above.
9. That a detailed Stormwater Management Plan be prepared and implemented
through the Subdivision Agreement, including the detail design of flood
conveyance facilities including channel works, detention pond and floodplain/spill
area grade alterations for the development, be prepared by a qualified consultant
and approved by Grey Sauble Conservation Authority. This plan shall also detail
the retention of wetland habitat on the property to ensure no negative impacts to
the natural features and their ecological functions and no net loss in identified
wetland habitat to the satisfaction of the Grey Sauble Conservation Authority,
County Transportation Services, Niagara Escarpment Commission, and the Town
of The Blue Mountains.
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Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

10. That any works identified within the final stormwater management plan and the
applicable provisions of the Craigleith Camperdown Subwatershed Study be
included in the subdivision agreement to the satisfaction of the Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority and the Town of The Blue Mountains.
11. Prior to the registration of the Plan, arrangements shall be made to the satisfaction
of the Town of The Blue Mountains for any relocation of utilities required by the
development of the subject lands, to be undertaken at the developers’ expense.
12. Prior to the initiation of any site grading or servicing and prior to registration of the
plan, submit for the approval of the Town of The Blue Mountains Development
Engineering Department a detailed soils investigation of the site prepared by a
qualified geotechnical engineer. A copy of this report shall also be submitted to the
Town’s Chief Building Official.
13. That the Subdivision Agreement contain specific clauses related to the required
Ontario Building Code / Engineering Standards, as applicable, of the Town of The
Blue Mountains and the County of Grey including but not limited to the following:
i.
That the roadway widths and the horizontal and vertical alignments of all
public roads and underground services including their intersection
geometrics shall be designed to the Town of The Blue Mountains
Engineering Standards. Private roads shall be designed to Ontario
Building Code standards. Where Ontario Building Code standards do not
address engineering design elements, or where public Infrastructure will
be located in an easement in a private road, then Town of The Blue
Mountains Engineering Standards shall apply.
ii.
That any intersections with Grey Road 19 follow County Transportation
Services standards, and are granted any applicable permits.
iii.
That suitable construction traffic routes are identified to the satisfaction of
the Town of The Blue Mountains and County of Grey Transportation
Services.
iv.
That an exemption be received from County of Grey’s Director of
Transportation Services to exempt the new intersection at Street B and
Birches Boulevard from the County’s standard intersection separation
distance requirements.
v.
That appropriate signage and/or barricades be placed at the emergency
access to ensure that it is used for emergencies only, and that it does not
become a permanent intersection or pedestrian crossing at Grey Road 19.
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Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
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That a Turn Pathway Analysis be submitted to ensure adequate
movement and turning of vehicles within roads and lanes.

14. That an appropriate easement be dedicated to the Town of The Blue
Mountains and Public to provide for Public Access over the Condominium
Roads.
15. The street lighting system on all roadways for this subdivision shall be
designed and constructed in accordance with the Town of The Blue Mountains
Engineering Standards or as otherwise approved by Town. The Subdivision
Agreement shall also require that all external lighting, including street lighting,
be dark-sky compliant and this requirement shall also be incorporated in the
required Site Plan Agreement.
16. That a composite utility plan be provide to the Town of The Blue Mountains
approved by all appropriate utilities, including a standard cross-section of
appropriate width or including easements to the satisfaction of Town.
17. The Owner shall dedicate “Street A” and “Street B” of the Draft Plan to the
Town of The Blue Mountains as public roads.
18. That prior to final approval and registration, the Owner shall transfer a portion
of Helen Street to the Town of The Blue Mountains free and clear of all
encumbrances. The Helen Street transfer shall include from the westerly
boundary at Grey Road 19 extending easterly to Block 229 at a municipal road
turning circle.
19. That the Subdivision Agreement will contain provisions dealing with the design
and construction of any portion of a temporary municipal road turning circle that
may be required to be constructed on Town of The Blue Mountains owned lands
adjacent to Street A.

Landscape, Fencing and Streetscape Requirements
20. That prior to initiation of any site alteration, the Owner prepares a Landscape
Analysis, Vegetation/Tree Preservation/Management Plan, Restoration Plan
and Landscape Plan by a qualified consultant to the satisfaction of the Town of
The Blue Mountains, the Grey Sauble Conservation Authority, and the Niagara
Escarpment Commission. The plans shall be incorporated into the Subdivision
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Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

Agreement with the Town. The Landscape Plan, Vegetation/Tree
Preservation/Management Plan and Restoration Plan shall include amongst
other matters:
i)

special provisions to ensure that the existing vegetation on the periphery of
the site be maintained and protected during the development process;
ii) Mitigation and compensation for impacts to Butternut trees shall be in
conformity with Ontario Regulation 242/08 (Section 23.7) and to the
satisfaction of Ministry of the Environment Conservation and Parks;
iii) A forest edge management plan to avoid impacts to areas where
woodlands or trees are to be maintained; and
iv) As per the Environmental Impact Study, a restoration plan that addresses
the loss of wetland habitat, the creation of new wetland and appropriate
buffers and the loss of habitat for Eastern Wood Peewee and Area
Sensitive Forest Breeding Birds on the subject lands.
21. That the Subdivision Agreement include provisions for the installation of a
privacy board-fence along the southern property boundary between Lots 140
and 198 to the satisfaction of the Town of The Blue Mountains.

Parks, Trails and Open Space Requirements
22. That the Owner shall dedicate Blocks 227, 232 and 242 to the Town of The Blue
Mountains for Parkland purposes.
23. The Parkland dedications shall satisfy Parkland requirements under this and
future phases of the development lands.
24. That the Subdivision Agreement include the requirement for a Trail Plan to
submitted to the satisfaction of the Town of The Blue Mountains.
25. That the Owner design and install all trails and walkways to the satisfaction of
the Town. However, all trails and walkways to be located on slopes or in the
valley (below top of slope of the Nipissing Ridge) shall be maintained in their
natural condition and form, with as little disturbance to the grades, contours and
natural environment as possible.
26. That the Owner dedicate appropriate easements to the Town to provide for
public trail access provided for in the approved Trail Plan.
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27. Protection of the Nipissing Ridge shall be reflected in appropriate zoning, to the
satisfaction of the Town.
28. The Owner shall dedicate the Nipissing Ridge, identified as Blocks 241 and 243
of the Draft Plan, to the Town of The Blue Mountains for Open Space purposes.
29. The dedication of the Open Space Blocks, along with the other identified open
space areas on the Draft Plan, satisfies the 40% open space requirement for
this and all future phases of the development lands.
30. Protection of the Significant Archaeological Site (Plater-Martin BdHb-1),
identified as Block 240 of the Draft Plan, shall be reflected in the appropriate
restrictive zoning to the satisfaction of the Town.

Miscellaneous Requirements
31. That the Subdivision Agreement include the requirement of a Site Plan
Agreement, where necessary, prior to building permits being issued.
32. The Owner shall grant all necessary easements and/or blocks and/or enter
into agreement for drainage, utility and servicing purposes, as may be required,
to the appropriate agency or public authority.
33. The Subdivision Agreement include a requirement that arrangements be made
with Canada Post and the Town of The Blue Mountains Operations Department
for the provision of suitable mail delivery methods which may include the
installation of Canada Post Community Mailboxes and that the locations be
included on the appropriate servicing plans.
34. That should Community Mailboxes be required, that the Subdivision Agreement
contain further clauses requiring that the Owner install an appropriately sized
sidewalk section (concrete pad) per Canada Post specifications, to place the
mailbox on, plus any required walkway access and/or curb depressions for
wheelchair access and the provision of a temporary Community Mailbox location
until curbs, sidewalks and final grading have been completed.
35. That the Owner prepare a Communication Plan to the satisfaction of the Town
of The Blue Mountains prior to execution of the Subdivision Agreement.
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36. That a restrictive covenant be placed on the lots within the draft plan of
subdivision advising all future owners that Short Term Accommodation uses are
prohibited within the subdivision.
37. That prior to final approval, a copy of the fully executed Subdivision Agreement
between the Owner and the Town of The Blue Mountains shall be provided to
the County of Grey, the Niagara Escarpment Commission, and the Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority.
38. The Owner shall dedicate a 0.3 metre reserve to the County of Grey along Grey
Road 19 on Blocks 227, 228 and 235.
39. That prior to Final Approval and registration, the Owner shall consult with the
Saugeen Ojibway Nation (as the identified Indigenous lead Nation) regarding
the long term protection of Block 240 (Plater-Martin BdHb-1). The
implementation of such consultation shall be in a manner to the satisfaction of
the County of Grey and the Town of The Blue Mountains.
40. That prior to any site alteration, Final Approval and registration, the Owner shall
agree to the following in the Subdivision Agreement or any applicable PreServicing Agreement:
i)

ii)

iii)

The Owner shall facilitate monitoring by experienced Saugeen Ojibway
Nation representatives when the topsoil/ploughzone is removed from
residential, recreation centre, and stormwater management pond areas.
The Owner shall develop a monitoring plan to the satisfaction of the
Saugeen Ojibway Nation to ensure exposed subsoil surface is examined
for features and/or characteristics that may be consistent with cultural or
archaeological resources.
The Archaeological Monitoring Plan shall be included as a schedule to
the Subdivision Agreement.

41. Prior to the signing of the final plan by the County of Grey, the Town of The Blue
Mountains is to be advised that all Draft Plan conditions have been carried out
to the Town’s satisfaction.
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42. That consistent with the County of Grey’s current provisions for processing and
approving plans of subdivision the Owner’s surveyor shall agree to provide to
the County a digitized disk of this final plan to be registered in a computerized
format which is compatible with AutoCAD “.dwg” file.
43. That the Owner’s surveyor provide to the County of Grey a copy of the
deposited Reference Plan which had been submitted to the Land Registry/Land
Titles Office for Grey for “First Registration Under the Land Titles Act, R.S.O.
1990, c.L.5”.
44. That prior to final approval being given, the County is advised in writing by the
Town of The Blue Mountains, how Conditions 2 to 41 have been satisfied.
45. That prior to final approval being given, the County is advised in writing by the
Grey Sauble Conservation Authority how Conditions 8, 9, 10, 20, and 37 have
been satisfied.
46. That prior to final approval being given, the County is advised in writing by the
County Transportation Services Department how Conditions 8, 9, 13, and 38.
have been satisfied.
47. That prior to final approval being given, the County is advised in writing by
Canada Post how Conditions 33 and 34 have been satisfied.
48. That prior to final approval being given, the County is advised in writing by the
Niagara Escarpment Commission how Conditions 9, 20 and 37 have been
satisfied.
49. That the Owner have prepared by an Ontario Land Surveyor a final plan in
accordance with the Surveys Act, and with the Registry Act or the Land Titles
Act, as the case may be and have provided that plan to the County of Grey prior
to the lapsing date the mylars and white prints necessary for final approval and
registration.
50. That the Owner remit to the County the applicable final approval fee when the
final plan is being presented to the County for the County’s consideration for
final approval.
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NOTES TO DRAFT APPROVAL
1.

It is the applicant's responsibility to fulfil the conditions of draft approval and to
ensure that the required clearance letters are forwarded by the appropriate
agencies to the County of Grey, quoting the County file number 42T-2015-03.

2.

An electrical distribution line operating at below 50,000 volts might be located
within the area affected by this development or abutting this development.
Section 186 - Proximity - of the Regulations for Construction Projects in the
Occupational Health and Safety Act, requires that no object be brought closer
than 3 metres (10 feet) to the energized conductor. It is proponent’s responsibility
to be aware, and to make all personnel on site aware, that all equipment and
personnel must come no closer than the distance specified in the Act. They
should also be aware that the electrical conductors can raise and lower without
warning, depending on the electrical demand placed on the line. Warning signs
should be posted on the wood poles supporting the conductors stating “DANGER
- Overhead Electrical Wires” in all locations where personnel and construction
vehicles might come in close proximity to the conductors.

3.

Clearances are required from the following:






4.

Town of The Blue Mountains, 32 Mill Street, P.O. Box 310, Thornbury, ON
N0H 2P0
Grey Sauble Conservation Authority, 237897 Inglis Falls Road, RR#4, Owen
Sound, ON, N4K 5N6
Grey County Transportation Services, 595 9th Avenue East, Owen Sound,
ON, N4K 3E3
Canada Post, 955 Highbury Avenue, London, ON, N5Y 1A3
Niagara Escarpment Commission, 1450 7th Avenue East, Owen Sound, ON
N4K 2Z1

We suggest you make yourself aware of the following subsections of the Land
Titles Act:
a) subsection 144(1) requires all new plans to be registered in a Land Titles
system if the land is situated in a land titles division; and
b) subsection 144(2) allows certain exceptions.
The subdivision plan for Registration must be in conformity with the applicable
Ontario Regulation under The Registry Act.

PDR-CW-30-20

27

142

Date: June 25, 2020

Applicant: MacPherson Builders (Blue Mountains) Limited
Municipality: Town of The Blue Mountains
Location: Part Lot 159, Plan 529, South Part of Lot 20, Concession 2,
Date of Decision:
Last Date of Appeal:

File No.: 42T-2015-03

Date of Notice:

5.

A portion of the subject lands are affected by Ontario Regulation 151/06:
Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alteration to Shorelines and
Watercourses regulation. As such, permits are required from the Grey Sauble
Conservation Authority prior to site alterations and/or construction within the
affected areas.

6.

Inauguration or extension of a piped water supply, a sewage system, or a storm
drainage system is subject to the approval of the Ministry of the Environment
Conservation and Parks under the Ontario Water Resources Act, RSO 1990, as
amended.

7.

All measurements in subdivision final plans must be presented in metric units.

8.

That the applicant contacts Canada Post at the address below to determine any
arrangements required by Canada Post for the provision of mail service to the
proposed residential lots:
Delivery Planning Officer, Canada Post Corporation, 955 Highbury Ave, London,
Ontario, N5Y 1A3

9.

The final plan approved by the County of Grey must be registered within thirty
(30) days or the County may withdraw its approval under subsection 51(32) of
the Planning Act RSO 1990, as amended.
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